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LM MORTCGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 38 June 2006

Campensation by category: Key Management Personnel

2006 2085 2005
Consolidated Scheme Scheme
$ b 3
Short term 23,994 23,994 15,920
Post employment 2,135 2,155 1,085
Gther long term - “ -
Termination benefits - - -
Equity based payment - . - -
Other - - 226
26,149 26,149 17231
Loans te Specified KMP

The Scheme has not made, guaranteed or secured, directly ot indirectly any loans fo the KMP o their
related entities during the period.

Peter Charles Drake is » director and guarantor of Australian Intemational Investment Services Pty

. Lid which is s Joint borrower in & loan facility omstanding to the Scheme as at 30 June 2006 for
$1,650,000 (MORT 2157). This transaction was approved on an arms length basis and is on normal
terms and conditions,

{c) Other Transactions and Balsnces with Specified KMP

Other thar those items diselosed in the related party note 11, the Scheme has o other transactions
and balances with specified KMP.

15, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Scheme’s principal financial instruments comprise units in managed investment schemes,
investments in secured mortgages, net assets attributable to unitholders, cash and short-term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to generate a return on the investment made by
unitholders.

The Scheme also has various other financial instruments such as rade debtors and trade credifors,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Scheme’s financial instruments are interest rate risk and credit rigk.
The Responsibie Eatity reviews and agrees policics for managing each of these risks and they are
sumamarised below,
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2006

b) Credit risk exposure
Credit tisk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed 10 perform as contracted.
The rotal credit risk for recognised jtems including securities is therefors limited to the amount carried on
the statement of financial position.
Recognised financial instruments
The Scheme minimises concentrations of credit risk by:
= undertaking credit assessment procedures on prospeciive borrowers;
v dealing with Australian regulated banks for cash balances;
= obtaining independent valuations for all loans; and
[

eainiaining an average loan to valuation mtios net exceeding 75% of the mortgage securities.

The percentage of loans secured by property in different geographical locations is as follows:

2086 2005
Sydney CBD . 1.27 % 1.84 %
Within 4Gkm of Sydney CBD 2598 % 2624 %
New South Wales — Other 14.70 % 20.66 %
Melbourne - CBD 0.39% 0.44 %
Within 40km of Melbourne CBD) 9.9% 12.04
Victoria — Other 417% 7.26%
Brisbane CBD 0.00 % 0.00%
Within 40km of Brisbane CBD 18.50 % 15.06 %
Queensland — Other 1231 % 441 %
Cenberra — Other . 4.30% 6.64 %
NT 158 % 0.13%
SA 6.71 % 325%
WA 1.12% 2.03%

100,00 % 160.00 %

As at 30 June 2006 39 4% of the bafance of mortgage loans is secured on construction/development property
(2005: 36.5%) and 60.5% on commercial property {2005: 63,5%).

The Scheme's maximum credit risk exposure at balance dete in relation to mortgage loan is the camrying
vaiue of these sssets as indicated in the statement of financial position. No single mortgage invesiment
exceeds 10% of the Scheme which ensures that there is no concentration of risk.

3 Liguidity and cash flow risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Scheme may not be able 10 meet its obligations in relation 10 investment
activities or funding unit holder redemptions.

The Responsible Entity employs risk management strategies 1o ensure that the Schome iz able to meet its
obligations as above. The liquidity risk associated with the need 1o satisfy unithoiders requests for
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' LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 39 June 2006

redemptions gre mitigated by offering fixed term investment periods for investors and by maintaining
sufficient cash funds to satisly usuzl levels of demand for at-call investments.

In order to minimise liquidity risk, management asgesses and monitors the liguidity requirements of both
unitholder redemptions and investment activities and ensures that at all times the Scheme as adequate cash

and cash equivalents to cover any unusual obligations and that liquidity is mangged within the Scheme’s
policies and limits.

d) Net fair values of financiai assets and jiabilities

The Scheme’s financial assets and ligbilities included in the statement of financial position are carried at
amounts that approximate net fair value

17. COMPOSITION OF CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

On 22 December 2005, LM Morigage Incone Fund acquired 160% ownership of LM MIF Investments Pty
Ltd, an uniisted company based in Australia newly formed on 22 Decernber 2005,

From the date of acquisition, LM MIF Investment Pty Ltd has contributed ril to the net profit of the
consolidated entity.

18 SEGMENT INFORMATION

{a) Business segment

The Scheme is erganised into one main business segment which operates solely in the business of

investment management within Australis. The Scheme operates from Austraiia (the geographical segrient).

o} Geographic scgments
The Scheme operates in Australia and all directly held assets are Austrabinn.
19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
There are no materinl contingent assets and labilities or commitments as at 30 June 2006.
6. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
No significant svents have occurred since balance date which would impact on the financiaf pesition of the

consolidated entity disclosed in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2006 or ax the results and cash flows of the
consolidated entity for the year ended on that date.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

DIRECTORS DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited, T state that;

&) The financial starements und notes of the Repistered Scheme set out on pages 6 4o 34 are in
accardance with tke Corporations Act 2001, including:

() complying witk Accounting Standards and the Corporation Regulations 2001; and

(i} piving a true and fair view of the Scheme’s financial position as st 30 June 2006, and of it
perfermance, 85 represented by the resuits of its operations and its cash flows for the financia
year ended on that date.

b) there are reasonabie prounds to believe that the Scheme will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable; and

" ¢} the financial statements are in aceordance with the provisions of the Scheme's Constitutios.

On behalf of the Board

LM Investment Management Limited,

Lisa Darcy
Director

Gold Coast
21 August 2006
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-
&l Ernst & YOUNG ¥ 1 Eagle Sueet 2 tel 6173011330
e Brisbane QLD 4000 Fax 61736113100
Australia
PO Box 7878

Wietitaet Plce
Brishane QLD 4001

Independent audit report to unitholders of LM Morteage Income Fund

Scope

The financial repart and directors’ responsibility

The financial report corriprises the balance sheet, Income statement, statement of changes in eguity,
statement of cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the direciors’
declaration for LM Merigage Income Fund (“the Scheme™) and the consolidated entity, for the year
ended 30 June 2006. The consolidated entity comprises both the Scheme and the entities it
controlled during that year.

The directors of the Responsible Entity of the Scheme are responsible for preparing & financial
report that gives a true and falr view of the financial posttion and performance of the Scheme and
the consolidated entity, and that complies with Accounting Standards in Australia, in accordance
with the Corperations Act 2001, This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detest fraud and crror, and
for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Aundit appreach

We conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion to the
unitholders of the Scheme. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Ausiralian Auditing
Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financis! report is free of
material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of
professional judgement, selective testing, the mberent limitations of intemal control, and the
availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guaraniee that
all material risstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respecis the financial report presents
{airly, in accordance with the Corporations Aet 2001, including compliance with Accounting
Standards in Australia, and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view
which is consisient with our understanding of the Scheme’s and the consolidated entity’s financial
position, and of their performance as represented by the resulis of their operations and cash flows.

We formed our audit opirion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

® examining, on a fest basis, information to provide evidence supporiing the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report; and
e assessing the appropristeness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls aver financiaf reporting
when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide
assurance on internal controls.

We performed procedures to assess whether the substance of business transactions was accurately
reflected in the financial report. These and our other peocedures did not include consideration or

Jjudgement of the appropriateness or reasonableness of the business plans or strategies adopted by
the directors and management of the Scheme.

Liability hrwited by » schene approved under
Professionn! Standards Lepisiation
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S ERNST & YOUNG

P

Independence )

We are independent of the Scheme and the consolidated entity and have met the independence
requirements of Australian professional ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 200!, We
" have given to the directors of the Responsible Entity & written Auditor’s Independence Declaration,

a copy of which is included in the Directars’ Report.
Audit opinion
In our opinion the financial report of LM Morigage Income Fund is in accordance with:

(a)  the Corporations der 200!, including:

{) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of LM Mortgage income Fund
and the consolidated entity at 30 June 2006 and of their performance for the year
ended on that date; and

(i)  complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations
Regulations 2001; and

(b}  other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia,

éﬂé‘ &

Emst & Young

‘21 August 2006
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Australian Securities &
Investments Commission

AU!TR.ALIAN sscumnzs

I

Form 388

Corporations Act 20(1
294, 295, 298-300, 307, 308, 319, 31,322
Corporaticns Regulations

. 1008
Copy of financial statements and reports
if thare Is Insufiicient space in any section of the form, you may photocopy the relevant page(s) and submit as part of this lodgement
Companyischeme details Company/schems narme
L) _FrEST nmoR7T GACE INeaME A/
ACNIARBN/ARSN/PINIABN
OET F43 o285 |
nggemem details Who should ASIC contact if there is a query shout this form?
Fimniorganisation s
L7 nVESTIBAE /?’bnczq'eﬂ?e/# Z, |
Conjaciname/position description , |
9N _Halli el __ |
ASIC registelh agent number (if appicable) m manreal |
| »/2 i |
Tejephone number 25 SEP 2001
Postal address " BR[SQAE NTRE
(£ Lo 483 N |
(S rfers Farad . SE /. 427 ) [
1 Reason for lodgement of statement and reports
Tick appropriate box D A miblic company or a discicsing entity which is ol a registared schems of prescribed interest {A)
undertaking
E Aregistered scheme (B}
D Amendment of Enancisl stafements or directors’ repent {company] )
D Amendment of financial statements of directors’ report {registered scheme) 18]
D A large proprielary company that is not a disciosing entity H)
D A small propristary company that is comtrolled by a forsign compeny for gif or part of the period and o
where the company's profit or loss for the period is not covered by the statements indged with ASIC by s
registered foreign company, company, registered schieme, or disdiosing entity
m Asmall proprietary company that is requested by ASIC to prepare and lodge statements and reports {J}
D A prescribed interest undariaking that is a disclosing entity (K}
Dates on which financial yaar begins  Financial year beging Financial year ends
and ends ID]@ fEileziico o Kl et slEd
LD Y Y] LM oMY Y
Date of annual general mesting D D!D Df
(if applicable) OO M M Y v
ASIC Form 328 1 Juty 2007 Page t of 3
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2 Details of large proprietary company

i the: company is a largs praprietary company that Is nota disdosing enlity, please complete the following information as
&t the end of the financial year for which the financial statements reiate;

A Whatis the consolidated revenue of the farge proprietary company and the entities thet # controls?
E ' |
B Whatis the value of the consolidated gross assets of the large proptietary company and the entities thet #t controls?

J 1 :

C  How many employees are employed by the large proprietry company and the entities that it controls?

I |

D How many members does the large propristary company have?

I ?

3 Auditor’s report

Were the financiel statements audied?

Yes

Ne

EE tf no, i there a class order exemption current for audit refief?
Ej Yes
E] No

Hyes, does the auditor’s report {5308) for the finencie! yesr contain & statement of:
Reasons for the auditor rot helng safished as 1o the matters referred to in $3077

[:}Yes
@No

Details of the deficiency, faiiure or shortcoming concerning any matter referred to in 53077

DYES
END

4 Details of current auditor

Registered schemes must advise ASIC

of the appointment of an sudior on &

Form 5137 Appointment of schems audior
within 14 days of the appoiniment of the
auditor,

ASIC Form 380

Auttor registration number ffor inividuaf suditor or sutharised audit company)

Family neme Given name

I i

of
Company name
ACNIABN /

752 887 277 49 |

or
Firm name (¥ applicabis)

1 July 2007 Page2 of 3
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4 Continued... Details of current auditor

Office_yntt level 4

Welertron7 /"/QCZ

Sireet number and Street pamg

L4 Eagle &7 ree/f’

ubuy(:ﬂ{«/ , Siate/Territory

K v SEQne | o

)
Pesteode Country (if not Australia

[FoRe | l

Date of appaintment

A=

oopM oMoy

o Statements and reports to be attached to this form

Financial statements for the year (as per s235(2) and accounting standards)
income statsmant for the yesr
Balance sheef as af the end of the year See AYW\EK'W& ﬁ
Statement of cash fiows for the year
Statement of changes fn equily or statement of recognised incoms and expense far the year
W required by sccounting standards - the consolidafed income statemen, balance sheef, slelement of cash
flows and sistement of changes in equity/statement of recognised income and expense

Notes 1o Bnancial statements {as per s293(3))
Disclosures required by the regulations
Notes required by the accounfing standards
Any other information necessary io give & rue and fair view (see 5287}
The girectors’ declaration ebout the statements and notes {as per 5285(4))
The directors' report for the yesr, including the auditor’s independence declaration {as per 5298 to s300A)
Auditor's report reguired under 5308 and s314

Concise report {if any) (s314)

Signature

See Guids for details of signatory.

| certify that the atlached documents marked ( } &re a true copy of the annuat reponts required under 318,

Name

[LLSH ///M le/

Signature N m ~

Capadty j
Diractor

D Company secrelary

Date signed

5
USERTA

{odgement

ASIC Form 388

Sent completad and signed forms fo; For help or more information
Australian Securities end Investments Commission, Telaphone 535177 2688
PO Box 4000, Gipsiand Mail Centre VIC 3841, Ema info ennuirieseasic ooy au
Web VAW, BSIC.00V 8
L]
1 Juty 2007 Page 3af 3

611



Page 4 of 40 Docld: 024111855 Org No:086 343 288

This is Annexure “A” of 36 Pages referred to in From 388 — Copy of Financial Sttement and Reports

(00

LiSA DARCY - DIRECTJR

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

{formerly LM Mortgage Income Fund)

ABN: 66 485 247 488
Annual Report
For the year ended 30 June 2007
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

{formerly LM Mortgage Income Fund)

ABN: 66 482 247 488
Annual Report
For the year ended 30 June 2007
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
ABN: 66 482 247 488
Annual Report — 30 June 2007

Contents

DIRECTORS  REPORT ...ouiuiitee it er e ee e st sas et s e !
AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION ..o oeoeeeeee oo 4
INCOME STATEMENT ..ottt or st esesesseseee s e eee e es e ee st e eeeeeeeese s 5
BALANCE SHEET 1.oucooooe oo es st eees e e e e oot eeeoeeeeoeeeeee 6
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN BOUITY oot oo s oo 6
CASH FLOW STATEMENT ....ooovvot ettt eeeeeee ettt ees et ssme s e teeeeeoee e 7
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...t oo 8
DIRECTORS” DECLARATION 1...ovovteeecteeeeteteteeeeee oot 32
INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT ......ooomtteemitoeeeeceeeesreos e oee e as oo e oo 33

The Responsibie Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Lid {ABN 68 077 208 461).
The Responsible Entity's registered office is Level 4, RSL Building, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise QLD 4217,
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Directors® Report

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

# The directors of LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the LM First Mortgage income

| Fund, present their report together with the consolidated financial repott of the LM First Mortgage income Fund

’ (“the Scheme”) and its subsidiary (“the consolidated entity™), for the year ended 30 June 2007. The directors’
report is ntot part of the financial report.

B DIRECTORS
|

The following persons held office as dircctors of LM Investment Management Limited, during the vear or since the
end of the year and up to the date of this report:

, Name Period of directorship
Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997
Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003
Mr John Dillon Appointed § June 2005
Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2006
Ms Francene Mulder Appointed 30 September 2006
Mr Johr Vallander Liewellyn Appointed 6 June 2007
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Scheme continued the principal activity of investing unitholders’ funds in registered
first mortgages, uniisted managed investment schemes and cash investments in Australia, in accordance with
the Scheme’s Constitution and in accordance with the investment policy of the Scheme as outlined in the
current product disclosure document.

During the year, the Scheme’s name was changed to LM First Mortgage Income Fund.
The Scheme did not have any employees during the year,
SCHEME INFORMATION |

The Scheme is an Australian registered scheme and was constituted in September 1999. The Responsible Entity of
LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited, who has been the Responsible Entity

f since registration of the Scheme.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Responsible Entity and the Scheme is Level 4, 9
Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensiand.

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS

Results

Buring the year, the Scheme continued to invest directly in registered first mortgage loans secured by
property in Australia, unlisted managed investment schemes and cash assets,

The change in net assets attributable to the unitholders of the Scheme is presented in the Income Statement.
Net profit atiributable to unitholders for the year ended 30 June 2007 was $64,161,393 (2006: $62,376.5 77}

Funds under management decreased by $94,350,212 (2006: increased by $184,988,266) to $783,324,637
{2006: $877,674,849). Funds under management from related managed investment schemes increased by
$38,950,000 (2006: $77,239,000) 1o $394,050,000 {2006: $355,100,000),
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Directors’ Report

The performance of the Scheme, as represented by the results of its operations, was as follows:

36 June 2667 30 June 2006

$ s
Net operating income/(ioss) before distributions 64,161,393 62,376,577
Financing costs; Distributions to unitholders (64,161,393) {62.376,577)
{Increasc) / decrease in net assets attributable to unithoiders - -
Net profit - -

UNITS ON ISSUE

There were 783,324,637 units on issue a1 30 June 2007 (2006: 877,674,849). During the vear 253,296,24}
units were issued by the Scheme (2006: 404,781,175) and 347,646,453 were withdrawn (2006: 219,782,909).

SCHEME ASSETS

At 30 June 2007, the Scheme held assets to a total value of $879,253,887 {2006: $914,245,175), The basis
for valuation of assefs is disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.

FEES PAID TO THE RESPONSIBLE ENTITY AND ASSOCIATES

The following fees were paid to LM Investment Management Limited and its associated compantes out of
Scheme property during the financial year, for funds management and administrative services provided on
behalf of the Responsible Entity:

2007 2006
5 5

¥ Management fees for the financial year received directly from LM First

Mortgage Income Fund by LM Administration Pty Limited 9,934,860 10,683,880
»  Other expenses incuwrred by the Responsible Entity which are reimbursed

in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution, including

administration and custodian fees 386,755 794,401

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

During the year the Scheme's name was changed from LM Morigage Income Fund to LM First Mortgage
Income Fund.

In the opinion of the directors, there were ne other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Scheme
that eccurred during the financial year under review,
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Directors’ Report

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE DATE

There has been no matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial year that has
significantly affected or may affect the Scheme’s operations in future financial years, the results of those
operations of the Scheme’s state of affairs in future years,

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

Further information on likely developments in the operation of the Scheme and the expected resulis of those
operations has not been included in this report because the Responsibie Entity believes it wounld iikely to
result in unreasonable prejudice to the Scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The operations of the Scheme are not subject to any particular or significant environmental regulations under
a law of the Commonwealth or a State or Territory. There have been 5o known significant breaches of any
" other environmental requirements applicable to the Scheme,

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

No insurance premiums are paid for out of the assets of the Scheme in regards to insurance cover provided to
either the officers of LM Investment Managemer Ltd or the auditors of the Scheme. Provided the officers of
LM investment Managemem Ltd act in accordance with the Scheme Constitution and the Law, the officers
remain indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme against Josses incurred while acting on behalf of the
Scheme. The auditors of the Scheme are in no way indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme,

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act
2001 is set out on page 4.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited.

Lisa Darcy
Director

Gold Coast

24 September 2007
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Lo f
EW ERNST & YOUNG 1 tagl S BTl 617301 333
Srisbane QLD 4000 Fax 6173071 3100
Australia
PO Box 7878

Waterfront Place
Brishane QLD 4001

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of LM Investment
Management Limited as Responsible Entity for LM First Mortgage Income
Fund

In relation to our audit of the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund for the financial
year ended 30 June 2007, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no
contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any
applicable code of professional conduct.

E MY et \']
Ernst & Young

% - Xo.)'%\f.ue.

Paula McLuskie
Partner

Brisbane

24 September 2007

Liability limited by a scheme approved under
Professional Sandards Legisimion
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INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 June 2007

30 June 2007 30 June 2006

Notes  Consolidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme
5 $ $ §

Income
Changes in the fair value of investments 3{a) 377.052 - 2,136,504 1,123,754
Interest revenue — loans and advances i(b) 80,704,491 81,106,122 75,358,111 76,307,718
Interest revenue - cash assets (b} 3,449,423 3,424,562 2,220,819 2,201,006
Other income 3{a) 3,945.714 1,945,714 2,328,033 2,328,033
Toral revenue and other income 88,476,680 88,476,398 82,041,467 81,960,511
Expenses —
Management fees i1 0,934 860 "1=f'1':9,-9341,’-8§6 : 10,683,880 10,683,880
Custodian fees 185,054 185,054 305,059 303,055
Advisor commissions 3,856,517 3,856,517 4,180,916 4,180,916
Impairment iosses on loans and receivables  9(d) 2,563,242 2,563,242 2,714,072 2,714,072
Finance costs 3,520,151 3,520,151 1,149,900 1,149,900
Legal fees 35411 35411 7,262 7,262
Other expenses 4 4,220,052 4.219.770 625,801 542 845
Total expenses excluding distibutions to
unitholders 24,315,287 24,315,005 19,666,890 19,583,934
Net profit anributable to unithoiders 64,161,393 64,161,393 62,376,577 62,376,577
Distributions to unitholders K1t (64,161,393)  (64.161,393) (62,376,577)  (62,376,577)

Changes in net assets attributable to
untitholders

Income tax expense

Changes in net asseis areributable to
unitholders afier income tax expense
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BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2007
36 Jane 2007 30 June 2006
Consolidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme
$ % § $
Notes

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 13 28,593,772 28,332 244 32,995,697 32,645,002
Receivables 12 6,997,000 6,934,39} 4,341,766 4,278 131
Prepayments 3,482,170 3,482,170 4,729,647 4,729,647
Investments 8 5,654,350 1 5,659,827 1
Loans and receivables 9 872,592,390

834,505,081 840,505,081 866,592,194 4

914,245 17

TOTAL ASSETS 879,232373 B7© 253 887 914,310,331} 5
LIABILITIES
Payables 481,752 503,266 246,819 872,663
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 10 90,466,662 90,466,662 30,416,662 30,416,662
Distributions payable 3{c) 4,959,322 4,959 322 5.281,00% 5,281,001}
TCGTAL LIABILITIES EXCLUDING
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TG
UNITHOLDERS 085 807,736 95,929,250 36,644482 36,570,326
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
UNITHOLDERS 6 83324637 TRIZZEIT 871,674,849 877’67‘*’3;

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2007

Net assets of the Scheme that are attributable to unitholders are classified as a liability rather than equity. Asa
result there was no equity at the start or end of the year. A Statement of Changes in Net Assets Auributable to

Unitholders is disclosed in note 6.

620
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 Sune 2007

Notes

Cash flows from eperating activities
Interest and distributions received
Management fees paid

Other operating expenses

Other income received

GST and withholding tax (paid)/received

Net cash infiow/(outflow) from
operating activities P3b}
Cash flows from investing getivities

Payments for secured mortgage loans

Receipts from settied mortgage loans

Payments for purchase of investments

Receipts from sale of investments

Net cash inflow/{outfiow} from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings

Receipts from the issue of units
Distributions paid

Payment for redemption of units

Net cash inflow/(outllow} from financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the vear

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of

the year 13{a}

30 June 2067 306 June 2006
Consolidated Scheme Conselidated Scheme
3 5 $ §

84,345 317 84,407,643 80,038,119 79,955,165
(10467111} (104671 11Y {11,631,560) (11,631,561}
(10,155,548)  (10,05%9,596) (14,742,089} (14,491,321}
1,611,118 1,547,484 3287894 3,287,894
{481,965) (481,965) 911,414 911,414
64,851,811 64,946,455 57,862,878 58,031,591
(435,242,800} (435,242 800) (575,024,453) (610,919,745}
464,782,349 464,776,872 316,057,835 411,700,381
- - {7,375,912)  (75.321,273)
- - 40,321,273 438,000,600
28,520,349 29,524,072 (226,021,257  (226,540,637)
60,050,000 60,050,600 30,416,662 30,416,662
236,754,786 236,754,786 387,598,304 387,598,304
(47,941,585)  (47,941,585) (43,995087)  {43,995,087)
(347,646,485) (347,646,486) {219,782,909) (219,782,809)
(98,783,285) (98,783,285 154,236,970 154,236,970
4,401,825) (4,312,758} {i3,921,409) (14,272,103
32,995,697 312,643,002 46,917,105 46,917,105
28,563,772 28,332,244 32,905,697 32,645,002
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNFE 2007

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund (“the Scheme™) for the year ended 30 June 2007
was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors of the Responsible Entity on 24
September 2007.

The Scheme is an Australian registered Scheme, constituted on 13 April 1999, The Scheme will
terminate on 13 April 2080 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provision of the Scheme
Constitulion (as amended).

LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, is incorporated and
domiciled in Australia. The registered office of the Responsiblie Entity is located at Lavel 4, 9 Beach
Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensland.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated in
the foliowing text.

a) Basis of accounting

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the
Scheme Constitution, and the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, which includes applicable
Accounting Standards.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the valuation
of investments in financial assets, which have been measured at fair value or amortised cost.

The balance sheet presents assets and hiabilities in decreasing order of liquidity ard does not distinguish
between current and non-current items, in accordance with AASB 101 - Presentation of Financial

Staternents.
b} Statement of compliance

The financial report complics with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (‘AIFRS’). Compliance with AIFRS ensures
that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes thereto, complies with
International Financial Reporting Standards (‘TFRS™).

Australian Accounting Standards that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective have
not been adopted for the annual reporting period ending 30 June 2007 are shown in the following tables.
None of the standards issued or amended have an impact on the accounting policies adopted by the
Syndicate.

622
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AASB Title Application date Application
Amendment/ of standard date for the
Standard Scheme.

2007-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 1 January 2009 I July 2009

arising from AASB 8 [AASB 5, AASB 6, AASB
102, AASB 107, AASB 19, AASB 127, AASB 134,
AASB 136, AASB 1023 & AASB 1038)

2007-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Liuly 2007 1 haly 2007
arising from ED 151 and other Amendments [AASB
1,2,3,4,5 6,7, 102, 107, 108, 110, 112, 114, 11§,
117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 127, 128, 129, 130, 131,
132, 133, 134, 136, 137, 138, 139, 141, 1023, &

: AASB 1038}
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2007 1 July 2607
[ AASBE Operating Segments 1 January 2009 1 July 2009

The following amendments are not applicable to the Scheme and therefore have no trrpact.

AASB Title

Amendment

2007-1 Amendments to Austratian Accounting Standards arising from AASB interpretation 11 [AASB
2

2007-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising ffom AASB Interpretation 12 [AASB
1, AASB 117, AASBIIS, AASB 120, AASB, 121, AASB 127, AASB 131 & AASB 139]

¢} Basis of consolidation

This consolidated financial report comprises the financial report of LM First Mortgage income Fund and
its subsidiary as at 30 June 2007 (“the consolidated entity”). The financial report of the subsidiary is
prepared for the same reporting period as the Scheme, using consistent accounting policies,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements all intercompany balances and income and expenses
and profil and losses resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in fall. Adjustments

are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group and cease 1o
be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the group.

d) Significant rccounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
(i} Significant accounting judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting polictes, management has made Judgements, apart

from those involving estimations, which have had an impact on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements. No judgements have been determined to be individually significant.

623
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(i) Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and labilities are often determined based on estimates and
assumptions of future events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual
reporting peried are:

Allowance for impairment loss on loans and receivables
The Scheme determines whether loans are impaired on an ongoing basis, This requires an estimation
of the value of future cash flows. The Scheme's policy for calculation of impairment losses is disclosed
in Note 2(h){ii).

¢} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. For the purposes
of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafs,

f} Income

Income is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Scheme
and the income can be reliably measured, The following specific recognition criteria must also be met
before income is recognised:

i) Dividend and distribution income

Dividend or distribution income is recognised when the shareholders’ or unitholders’ right to
receive the payment is established,

if) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues (using the effective interest rate method,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument) to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
iff} Changes in the fzir value of investments
Gains or losses on investments held for trading are calculated as the difference between the fair
value at sale, or at year end, and the fair value at the previous valation poinl. This includes both
realised and unrealised gains and losses.

g) Finance cosis

Interest on borrowings is recognised in the income statement in the pertod to which 1f relates. Issue costs

associated with borrowings are capitalised and amortised over the term of the borrowing to which they
relate using the effective interest method.

624
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h} Jovestments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, foans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, or available-for-sale investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fir vate
through profit or loss, directly attributable transactions costs. The consolidated entity determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the
Scheme commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assels under contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace,

i} Financiaf assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financia] assets classified as held for trading are included in the category ‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’. Financial assets are classified as held for wading if they are acquired for the
purpose of setling in the near term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss.

iiy Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, s well as through the amortisation process,

Loans and receivables are assessed for impairment at each reparting period. An allowance is made
for doubtful debts when there is objective evidence that the consolidated entity will not be able to
colieet the recetvables. Impairment losses are written off when identified. Losses expected as a
result of future events are not recognised. If a provision for impairment has been recognised n
relation to a loan, write offi for bad debts are made against the provision. Ifno proviston for
impairment has previously been recognised, write offs for bad debts are recognised as an expense iny
the income statement.

The amount provided for impairment of loans is determined by management of the Scheme and the
Credit Committee. A provision is made of loans in arrears where the collectibility of the debts is
considered doubtful by estimation of expected losses in relation to loan portfolios where specific
identification is impracticable,

The components of impaired assets zre as follows:

"Loans in arrears” are loans and advances for whick there is reasonable doubt that the Scheme will be
able to collect ali amounts of principal and interest in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

"Assets acquired through the enforcement of security” are assets acquired in full or partial settlement
of a loan or similar facility through the enforcement of security arrangements.

“Restructured loans” arise when the borrower is granted a concession due to continuing difficulties in

625
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meeting the original terms and new terms are not comparable to the revised terms. These loans are
removed from ‘restructure loans’ afier a period of 12 months of performance against ican revised
terms and conditions. Loans with revised terms are included in ‘loans in arrears’ when impairment
provisions are required.

i) Advisor Commissions

Advisor commissions may be paid to the unitholders’ investment advisers and are calculated as a
percentage of funds invested in the Scheme. These commissions are paid monthly in arrears and are
brought to account on an accrual basis. The Scheme ceases to pay advisor commissions when the related
units are redecmed.

i} Payables

Payables are catried at amortised cost and represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the
consolidated entity prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the consolidated
entity becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchases of these goods and services.

The distribution amount payable to investors as at the reporting date is recognised separately on the
balance sheet as unit hoiders are presently entitled to the distributable income as at 30 June 2007 under
the Scheme’s Constiution.

k) Increase/decrease in net assets sétributable to unitholders

Non-distributable income is transferred directly to net assets attributable to unitholders and may consist
of unrealised changes in the net fair value of investments, accrued income not vet assessable, expenses
accrued for which are nat yet deductible, net capital losses and tax fee or tax deferred income. Net
capital gains on the realisation of any investments (including any adjustments for tax deferred income
previously taken directly to net assets attributable to unitholders) and accrued income not yet assessable
will be included in the determination of distributable income in the same year in which it becomes
assessable for tax, Excess and undistributed income is also transferred directly to net assets attributable to
unitholders,

I Distributions

In accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution, the Scheme fully distributes its distributable income 1o
unitholders. Distributions are payable monthly. Such distributions are determined by reference to the
taxable income of the Scheme. Distributable income includes capital gains arising from the disposal of
investments, realised gains and losses on investments that are recognised as income are transferred to net
assets attributable to unitholders and are not assessable and distributable until realised. Capital losses are
not distributed 1o unitholders but are retained to be offset against any realised capital gains.

m) Goods and services tax (GST)

The GST incurred on the costs of various services provided to the Responsible Entity by third parties
such as audit fees, custodial services and investment management fees, have been passed onto the
Scheme. The Scheme qualifies for Reduced input Tax Credits (RITC’s) at a rate of 75%,

Hence investment management fees, custodial fees and other expenses have been recognised in the
statement of financial performance net of the amount of GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation
Office (ATO}. Accounts payable are inclusive of GST, The net amount of GST recoverable from the
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ATO is included in receivabie in the balance sheet. Cash flows relating to GST are included in the cash
flow statement on a gross basis.

The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities recoverable or payable
to the ATO is classified as an operating cash flow.

n) Applications and redemptions

Applications received for units in the Scheme are recorded when units are issued in the Scheme,
Redemptions from the Scheme are recorded when the cancellation of units redeemed oceurs, Unit
redemption prices are determined by reference of the net assets of the Scheme divided by the number of
units on issue,

o) Income tax

Under current legislation, the Scheme is not subject to income tax provided the distributable income of
the Scheme is fully distributed either by way of cash or reinvestment (ic Unitholders are presently
entitled 1o the income of the Scheme).

The price of a unit is based upon market values of underlying assets and thus may include a share of
unrealised capital gains. Should such a gain be realised, that portion of the gair that is subject to capital
gains 1ax will be distributed so that the Scheme is not subject 1o capital gains tax. Realised capial losses
are not distributed to unitholders but are retzined in the Scheme to be offzet against any realised capital
gains. if realised capital gains exceed realised capital losses, the excess is distributed to unithclders.

p) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All oans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration
received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing, After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on
scttlement,

627
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3. FINANCE INCOME AND DISTRIBUTEONS TO UNITHOLDERS

r} Noa-Interest income 30 Jupe 2007 30 June 2006
Consolidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme
b b p $
Changes in the fair value of investments 377,052 . 2,136,504 1,123,754
Other income:
Default management fees 3,497.077 3,497,077 2,112,240 2,112,240
Other income 448,637 448,637 215,793 215793
3,945,714 3,845,714 2,328,033 2,328,033
b) interest income
2007
Consolidated Scheme
Average Average Average Average
baiance income rate halance income rate
) $ Y $ % %o
Cash assets 61,964,147  3,449423 5.57% 61,515,754 3,424,562 5.57%
Loans and advances 819,492,029 80,704,491 9.85% | 819,992024 77,480,436 9.89%
881,456,176 84,153914 9.55% | 881,507,778 80,904,998 9.59%

2006
Consolidated Scheme
Average Average Average Average
balance Income rate balance Income rate
g 5 %o $ § %Yo
Cash assets 40,199,809 2,220,819 5.52% 39,754,106 2,201,005 5.54%
Loans and advances 728,142,186 75,358,111 10.65% | 752,713,615 78,508,724  10.14%

768,341,995 77,578,930

10.10% |_792,467,721 76,307,718 10.43%

¢} Distributions te unitholders 30 June 2067 36 June 2006
Consolidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme
$ § $ $
Distributions paid 39,202,071 . 59202071 56555576 56,555,576
Distributions payable 4,959,322 4,959,322 5,821,001 5,821,001
64,161,393 64,161,393 62376577 62,376,577

628
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4. OTHER EXPENSES

Loan origination expenses

Auditor’s remuneration

Praduct disclosure statement production costs
Other expenses

5. AUBITOR’S REMUNERATION

Audit and review of the financial reports
Other regulatory audit services

36 Fune 2007 36 Fune 2006
Consolidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme
$ 3 $ s
3,381,487 3,381,487 172,620 172.620
196,441 196,441 90,265 90,263
134,413 134,413 57,734 57.734
507,711 507,430 305,182 222,226
4,220,052 4,219,771 625,801 542 845
30 June 2007 30 June 2006
Consclidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme
$ k3 $ §
182,464 182,464 75,740 75,740
13,977 13,977 14,525 14,525
196,441 196,441 90,265 90,265

These expenses have been included within ‘Other Expenses’ in the Income Statement.

6. CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

Al} units in the Scheme are atiributed with a value of $1. The units on issue in the Scheme and the

consolidated entity are equal. Movements ip number 6f units and net assets attribytable to unitholders

during the year were as fotlows:

Net assets attributable to unitholders

Class A

Opening balance

Units issued during the year

Units redeemed during the year

Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions
Closing Balance

Class B
Opening balance

Units issued during the year

Units redeemed during the ysar

Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions
Closing Balance

39 June 2007 30 June 2606
Scheme Schenie
$/E S
522,574,846 414,815,583
65,204,786 219,907,304
(215,046,454)  (129,330,909)
16,541,489 " 17,182,871
389,274,670 522,574,849
355,100,000 277,861,000
171,550,060 167,691,000
(132,600,000} {90,452,000)
394,050,000 355,100,000
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30 June 2007 30 June 2008
TOTAL # $ # $
Opening balance 877,674,840 877,674,849 692,676,583 652,676,583
Units issued during the year 236,754,786 236,754,786 387,598,304 387,598,304
Units redeemed during the year (347,646,453) (347,646,453) (219,782,909) (21 9,782,509)
Units issued on reinvestment of
distributions 16,541,455 16,541,455 17,182,871 17,182,871
Transfers to and from the income
statement - “
Closing Bailance 783,324,637 783,324,637 877,679,849 877,674,849

Class A consists of unit holders whe are entitled to receive the declared disiribution rate.

Class B consists of unit holders with an investment greater than $1,000,000. The distribution rate will be
determined by the Responsible Entity. The Responsible Entity has the diseretion 10 waive the whole or
part of the [% trailing commission and the whole or part of its management fee for this class of unit
holders.

All unitholders are entitled to receive distributions as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per unit at unitholders’ meetings. In the event of winding up of the Scheme, all unitholders rank
after creditors and are equally entitled to the proceeds of liquidation.

7. DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLBERS

30 Fune 2007 30 June 2006
Distributions 5 $
Class A 34,369,506 36,587,325
Class B 29,791 489 25,789,252
64,161,395 62,376,577
& INVESTMENTS 2007 2007 2006 2606
Consolidated  Scheme  Consclidated Scheme
k3 § b $

Financial assets held at fair value
through profit and loss [t} 5,654,350 - 5,659,827 -
Investment in subsidiary {iiy - 1 - i

5,654,350 1 5, 659 827 H

1). At 30 June 2007, the consolidated entity held 4,978,736 units in the PM Capital Enhanced Yield
Fund (2006: 4,978,736). The unit price at 30 June 2007 was $1.1357 (2006: $1.1368).

ii). The Scheme owns 100% of the issued share capital of $1 of LM MIF Investments Pty Limited al
30 June 2007,
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9. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Secured Mortgage Loans

Other Unsecured Loans — related party
Provision for impairment

Net loans and advances

a) Apgregate amounts receivable from

related parties
Directors and director-related entities
Other related entities
Related managed investment schemes
Provision for impairment

b} Mafurity analysis ~ Secure Martgage

Loans
Less than 3 months
3-6 months
6-12 months
12-18 months
18-24 manths
24-36 months
36-48 months
48-60 months

¢}  Concentration of risk

30 Jugne 2007 30 June 2006
Consolidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme
3 $ b $

835,530,336 835,530,33¢ 868,300,393 868,300,393
- 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
(1,025,255)  (1,025,255) (1,707,999 (1,767,999)
834,505,081 840,505,081 866,592,304 872,592,394
- 6,000,000 - 6,006,000

- 6,000,000 - 6,300,000
201,435,919 201435918 170,717,544 170,717,544
144,628,228 144,628,228 152,224,418 152,224,418
54,191,912 54,191,912 361,643,592 361,643,592
224938707 224,938,707 89,620,092 89,620,092
49,981 868 49,981 868 18,716,137 10,716,137
68,573,704 68,573,704 32,691,153 32,691,153
51,154,823 51,154,823 10,610,549 10,610,549
40,625,175 40,625,175 40,076,908 40,076,509
835,530,336 835,530,336 868,300,393 868,300,393

As at 30 June 2007 no individual loan was greater than 10% of net assets attributable to unit holders,

d)  Provisions for impairment

The impairment loss expense relating to loans and receivabies comprises:

Specific provision 1,543,070 1,543,070 1,707,699 1,707,699

Collective impairment provision - - - -

Impairment losses recognised directly in the

Income Statement 1,620,172 1,020,172 1,006,073 1,006,073
2,563,242 2,563,242 2,714,072 2,714,072
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9. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (cont) 3¢ June 2047 30 June 2006
Conselidated  Scheme  Cousolidated Scheme
3 b3 5 $

Specific Provision

Opening balance 1,707,999 1,707,999 - -
Impairment losses provided for during year 1,543,070 1,543,070 1,767,999 1,707,999
Utiltsation of provisions (loans realised) (2,225,814) (2,225,814) - -
Closing balance . 1,025,255 1,025,255 1,707,999 1,707,999

Collective impairment provision
Opening balance
Impairment losses provided for during year -

Closing halance

TOTFAL PROVISION 1,025,255 1,025,255 1,747,999 1,707,999

The collective provision for impairment is caiculated by placing loans into poois with similar risk
characteristics and collectively assessing for impairment.

Movement in Default loans

Gross default loans opening balance 42,661,029 42,661,029 8,158 730 8,158,730
New and increased defauit loans 103,145,841 103,145,841 135 508,371 35,508,371
Balances written off (1,020,709)  (1,020,709)  (1,006,072)  (1,006,072)
Returned to performing or repaid {60,955,777)  (60,959,777) . -
Gross default loans closing balance 83,826,384 83,826,384  42661,029 42,661,029
Specific provision (1,025.254)  (1,025,254)  (1,707,999)  (1,707,999)
MNet default loans 82,801,130 82,801,130 40,953,030 40,953,030

Subsequent to balance date, default loans totzlling $18,005,763 have been repaid. Further, the Directors
of the Responsible Entity are in the process of finalising the sale of secured property in reiation to default
ioans totalling $21,381,314 at balance date.

10. INFEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

30 Fuse 2007 30 June 2006
Consolidated Scheme  Consolidated Scheme
3 3 $ $
Secured bank loan 90,446,662 90,446,662 30,416,662 30,416,662

in May 2007, the Scheme extended its financing agreement to access 1o $150m for a period of 2 years,
thereafier extendable at the bank’s option (2006: $100m). When drawn, the loan is secured by the assets of
the Scheme and are repayable within [2 months.
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11, RELATED PARTIES

Responsible Entity

The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited
(ABN 68 077 208 461). Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on
behalf of the Responsible Entity by LM Administration Pty Ltd, ar associate of the Responsible Entity,
LM Administration Pty Ltd is paid a management fee directly from the Scheme.

Custodian

The Custodian of the Scheme 1s Trust Company of Australia Limited.

Directors

The names of each person holding the position of director of LM Investment Management Limited
during the financial year are disclosed in Note 14.

Birectors’ remuneration

No amounts are paid by the Scheme directly to the directors of the Responsible Entity. The amount of
remuneration paid by the Responsible Entity and its related parties to directors of the Responsible Entity in
connection with their responsibilities for the Scheme is separately identified in Note 14.

Birectors’ holdings of units

The interests of LM Investment Management Limited and its associates in the Scheme at year-end are set
out below.

36 June 2007 30 June 2806
Consolidated  Scheme Consolidated Scheme
$ 3 $ b
- LM investment Management Limited - - 192,138 192,138
- Divectors and director related entities 20,017 20,017 - -
- Other Associates of LM Investment 384,050,00
Management Limited 394,050,000 0 355100,000 355,100,000

Investing activities

The Scheme may purchase and sell units in other approved schemes or investment entities operated by
LM Investment Management Limited or its associates in the ordinary course of business at applicalion
and redemption prices caleulated in accordance with the constitutions of those schemes. Al 30 June 2007
the Scheme had no investments in other schemes operated by LM Investment Management Limited or its
affiliates (2006: nil).
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Orher transactions with the Scheme

From time to time the directors of LM Investment Management Limited, or their director-related entities,
may invest or withdraw from the Scheme. These investments or withdrawals are on the same terms and
conditions as those entered into by other Scheme investors. Apart from the details disclosed in this note,
no director has entered into 2 material contract with the Scheme since the end of the previous financial
year and there were no material contracts involving directors’ interests subsisting at year-end.

Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the Responsible
Entity by LM Administration Pty Limited, an associate of the Responsibie Entity. LM Administration
Pty Ltd is paid 2 managemeni fee for these services direcily from Scheme assets,

During the year, LM Invesiment Management Limited was paid loan origination fees directly from
borrowers. Loan origination fees received by the Scheme during the year were $3,625,686 (2006:
$172,620) of which $3,381,487 was reimbursed by the Scheme to the Responsible Entity for the
administration of loan origination services (2006: $172,620).

The Scheme owns 100% of the share capital of LM MIF Investments Pty Limited, ar: entity incorporated
to invest i ‘at call’ securities on behalf of the Scheme. The Scheme advances unsecured, interest
bearing funds to LM MIF Investments Pty Ltd. The interest rate charged on the loan approximates the
return achieved from the investments undertaken on the Scheme’s behalf. The RE does not receive any
fees as a resull of this loan. As at 30 June 2007, the net assets of LM MIF Investments Pty Lid were ni}
(2006: nify LM MIF Investment Pty Limited’s net profit for the year was nil {2006: nil).

In June 2007, a related scheme, the LM Managed Performance Fund entered into a joint venture with an
unrelated borrower of the Scheme. The Scheme has advanced $4,725,000 to the LM Managed
Performance Fund, which is secured by the assets of the unrelated borrower and by & guarantee from the
LM Managed Performance Fund. This loan has been subject to the normal credit approval review
procedures of the Scheme.

The LM Managed Performance Fund has second mortgages on loans that are first mortgages of the LM
First Mortgage Income Fund totaliing $18,718,980 (2006: §1 9,636,287). The LM Managed Performance
Fund may on occasion pay development and construction costs on those related loans,
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34 June 2007

Consolidated
kY
Total remuneration received or due and
receivable
B Fees for the year paid directly by the
Scheme to LM Administration Pty Ltd 0,934,860
B Fees carned by LM Administration Pty
Ltd from other approved schemes
invested in by Scheme. -
& Other expenses including administration
expenses incurred by the Responsible
Entity, which are reimbursed to the
Responsibie Emity in accordance with
the provisions of the Constitution, 386,755
Custodian’s remuneration
& Custodian’s fees paid by the Scheme 185,054
Balance with related parties
Apgrepate amounts receivable from related
parties by the Scheme were as follows:
E LM Administration Pty Limited 2,793 556
(management fees prepaid by the
Schemeli)
® LM MIF Investmenis Pty Limited (ii) -
B Australian Iniernational Investments Pty 2,520,000

Limited (7}

{). These amounis are included in prepayments. No amounts are payable to related parties by the
Scheme. The average monthly balance of prepayments during the year was $7,204,945 (2006:

Scheme

$

©.934,860

386,755

185,054

2,793,556

6,000,000
2,520,000

30 June 2006

Consolidated

$

10,683,880

489,342

305,059

3,869,587

1,690,000

Scheme

$

10,683,880

489,342

305,059

3,869,587

6,000,000
1,690,000

£3,504,032) which was non-interest bearing. Interest foregone on the above amount if caloulated at

the weighted average cash rate of 5.57% would have been $401,315 (2006: §1 84,123). If this

revenue had been collected, the sum foregone would have been paid to LM Administration Pty Ltd as

management fees during the year.

fij. LM MIF Investments Pty Limited has an unsecured interest bearing loan with the Scheme. This

facility was entered into on an arms length basis and is on normal terms and conditions.

ij).  Peter Charles Drake is a director and guarantor of Australian internationa! Investment Services Pty

Ltd which is a joint borrower in a loan facility outstanding to the Scheme as at 30 June 2007 for
52,520,000 (2006: $1,690,000). This transaction was approved on an arms length basis and is on

normal terms and conditions.

635



Page 28 0f 40 Docld: 924111855 Org Ne:089 343 288

22

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
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Unitholder investing activities

Details of holdings in the Scheme by LM Investment Management Limited, its affiliates including
directors and director related persons or other schemes managed by LM Investment Management Limited

are set out below:

Entity Envestment interest Units issued Linits Bistributions

atyearend  heldinthe  during the redeemed paid and

# scheme at vear duoring the payable
year end year

38 June 2607
LM Currency Protected Australian
Income Fund . 161,500,000 19.30% 109,400,000 14,980,000 9,244,308
LM Institutional Currency Protected
Australian income Fund 28,750,000 3.44% 32,050,000 3,300,000 916,401
LM Managed Performance Fund 4,800,000 0.57% 22,100,000 22,400,000 716,572
LM Wholesale First Mortgage
Income Fund 199,600,000 23.78% 8,000,000 92,000,000 18,914,207
LM Investrnent Management 1.1d - - 4,510 196,648 3,207
James and Pamela Craig - - 10,961 325,705 8 R28
Harold Ward 20,017 0.00% 1,568 1,551 1,664
Tatal 394,070,617 47.09% 171,567,039 133123903 29,805,187
Entity Investment Interest Units issued Units Distributions

atyearend  heldinthe  during the regeemed paid amnd

# scheme st year during the payahie
vesr end vear

30 June 2066
LM Currency Protected Australian
Income Fund 67,000,000 1.63% 61,395,000 §,785,000 2,546,668
LM Managed Performance Fund 5,100,000 0.58% 20,420,000 17,840,000 871,807
LM Wholesale First Mortgage
Income Fund 283,000,000 32.24% 85,560,006 59,500,000 22,271,665
LM Investment Management Lid 192,138 0.02% - - .
James and Pamela Craig 314,743 4.04% 300,000 “ 14,832
Harold Ward 20,041 0.00% 20,000 - 36
Total 355,626,922 40.51% 167635000 86,125,000 8,705,012
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12, RECEIVABLES 30 Jupe 2007 30 June 2006
Consolidated  Scheme  Consolidated Scheme
by b $ $

Interest and distribution receivable 62,609 - 212,146 148,511
Mortgage interest reccivable 1,899,384  1,899.384 1,808,959 1,808,959
Penalty interest receivable 114,776 114,776 82,163 82,163
Default management fees receivable 4,834917  4,834917 2,112,240 2,112,240
GST receivable 85,314 §5,314 121,769 121,769
Other - - 4,489 4,489

6,997,000 6,934, 39 4,341,766 4,278,131

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

30 June 2007 36 June 2006
Consolidated Scheme  Consolidated Scheme
$ 5 b 3

#) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise;
- Cash at bank and in hand 28,503,772 28,332,244 32,995,697 32,645,002

Cash at bank and in hand eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
The fair vatue of cash and cash equivaients is $28,593,772 {2006: $32,995,697).

b} Reconciliation of change in net assets attributable to unitholders to net cash flows from
operating activities

30 Jure 2087 30 Jume 2006
Consolidated Scheme  Consolidated Scheme

8 5 % $
Change in net assets attributable to
unitholders - - - .
Adjustments for:
Non cash impairment expense 2,563,242 2.562,242 2,714,072 2714072
Distributions 10 unitholders 64,161,393 64,161,393 62,376,577 62,376,577
{Increase)/decrease in interest and
distribution receivable (2,908,324) (2,845,715)  (6,064,088) (5.820,918)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables 1,500,567 1,436,935 (1,100,004} (1,100,004}
Increase/(decrease) in payables {465,067)  (369,400) (63,679) (138,136}
Net cash flows from/{used in) operating
aclivities 04,851,811 64,946 455 37,862,878 58,631,591

¢} Reinvestment of distributions
During the financial year, the Scheme issued 16,541,489 units (2006: 17,1 82,871} as a result of reinvestment
of distribution by unitholders totalling $16,541,489 (2006: $17,182,871). These transactions have not been
included in the Cash Flow Statement,
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14.  KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
(n) Details of Key Management Personnel
(i) Key Management Personnel

The Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Scheme were deemed to be the Directors of the Respongibie
Entity. The Directars of the responsible entity during the year were:

Executive direciors

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997
Ms Lisa Mares Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003
Mr Egharg van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2006

Ms Francene Mares Mulder Appomted 30 September 2006
Non-executive directors

Mr John Diilon Appointed 8 June 2005

Mr John Vallander Lieweliyn Appointed 1 June 2007

(b} Compensation of Key Manapement Personnel
(i) Compensarion Policies and Principles

Remuneration of KMP is paid by LM Administration Pty Ltd, appointed by LM Investment Management
Lid as per its service agreement with that entity. The KMP do not receive any remuneration directiy
from the Scheme and there are no agreements in place between the KMP and the Scheme. The
remuneration of KMP as disclosed below has been allocated based on the each KMP's cost of
remuneration applicable to the Scheme. The principles used to allocate these costs {for disclosure
purposes only) are discussed below.

(i} Executive Directors

The Executive Directors of the Board of the Directors of LM Investment Management Lid are
responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the KMP of the Responsible
Entity. The Executive directors assess the appropriateness of the nature and amount of emoluments of the
KMP on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall
objective of ensuring maximurm stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality board. It is
intended that the manner of payment chosen will be optimal for the recipient without creating undue cost
for the Responsibie Entity.

It is the Executive Directors’ policy that employment agreements shall only be entered into with the
Executive Directors of the Responsible Entity, but with no other parties,

(iii)  Non- executive directors

Fees paid to non-executive directors are based on decisions made by the Executive Directors, This takes
into account workload requirements and responsibilities of each Director, Fees for duties as Directors are
not paid to executive Directors as their remuneration is provided as part of their normal terms and
conditions.
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(ivj Principles of KMP Remuneration Allocations

For all schemes managed by the Responsible Entity, the cost of total KMP remuneration has been
allocated 10 each scheme. The Responsibie Entity has estimated the amount of time spent by each KMP
performing responsibilities and duties to individual schemes, and on a percentage basis, has allocated the
remuneration cost 10 each scheme. Where a KMP has not spent time specifically on a scheme, but rather
has acted in a role as KMP of the Responsible Entity only, remuneration cost has been allocated evenly
across ail schemes.
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Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 36 June 2007

Compensation by category: Key Management Personnel

2807 2007 2606 2006
Consolidated Scheme Caonselidated Scheme
$ LS k) $

Short term 54,832 54,832 23,944 23,944
Post employment 4,965 4,965 2,156 2,156
Other long term - - - -
Termination benefits - - - -
Equity based payment - - - -
Other - - - -
59,867 59,867 26,100 26,100

Loans te Specified KMP

The Scheme has not made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly any loans 1o the KMP or their
related entities during the period.

{c} Other Transactions and Balances with Specificd KMP

Other than those items disclosed in the related party note 11, the Scheme has no other transactions
and balances with specified KMP.

1 15.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Scheme's principal financial instruments comprise units in managed investment schemes,
investments in secured mortgages, net assets attributabie to unitholders, cash and short-term deposits.
! The main purpose of these financial instruments is to generate a return on the investment made by
? unithoiders,

The Scheme also has various other financial instruments such as trade debtors and trade creditors,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Scheme’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Responsible Entity reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
are summarnsed below.
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b) Credit risk exposure
Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as contracted,
The total credit risk for recognised items including securities is therefore limited to the amount carried on
the statement of financial position,
Recognised financial instruments
The Scheme minimises concentrations of credit risk by:
* undertaking credit assessment procedures on prospective borrowers;
*  dealing with Australian regulated banks for cash balances;
= obtaining independent valuations for all loans: and

* maintaining an average loan to valuation ratios not exceeding 75% of the mortgage securities.

The percentage of loans secured by property in different geographical locations is as follows:

2067 2006

Sydney CBI} 0.00% 1.27 %
Within 40%m of Sydney CBD 20.30% 2598 %
New South Wales — Other 15.37% [4.70 %
Melbourne - CBD 0.00% £.39 %
Within 40km of Melbourne CBD 8.82% 0.9%
Vigtoria — Other 2.13% 4.17 %
Brisbane CBD 0.00% 0.00 %
Within 40km of Brisbane CBD 1.82% 18.5G %
Queensland — Other 34.58% 1231 %
Canberra — Other 5.35% 4.30 %
Northern Territory 5.18% 1.58 %
South Australia 0.00% 6.7] %
Western Australia 5.63% 0.19%
Tasmania - -

100.00% HI0.00 %

As at 30 June 2007 66.0% of the balance of morigage loans is secured on construction/development property
{2006: 60.5%) and 34.0% on commercial property (2006: 39.4%)).

The Scheme’s maximum credit risk exposure at balance date in relation to mortgage loan is the carrying
value of these assets as indicated in the statement of financial position. No single morigage investment
exceeds 10% of the Scheme which ensures that there is no concentration of risk,
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¢} Liquidity and cash flow risk

Liquidity risk is the rigk that the Scheme may not be abie to meet its obligations in relation to investment
activities or funding unit holder redemptions. !

The Responsible Entity employs risk management strategies lo ensure that the Scheme is able to meet its
obligations as above. The liguidity risk associated with the need fo satisfy unitholders requests for
redemptions are mitigated by offering fixed term investment periods for investors and by maintaining
suffictent cash funds to satisfy usual levels of demand for at-call investments.

In order to minimise liquidity risk, management assesses and monitors the liguidity requirements of both
unitholder redemptions and investment activities and ensures that at all times the Scheme as adequate cash
and cash equivalents to cover any unusual obligations and that liquidity is managed within the Scheme's
policies and lmits,

d) Net fair values of financial assets and linbilities

The Scheme’s financial assets and liabilities included in the statement of financial position are carried at
amounts that approximate net fair value

16. COMPOSITION OF CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

On 22 December 2003, EM First Morigage Income Fund acquired 100% ownership of LM MIF
Investments Pty Ltd, an unlisted company based in Australia newly formed on 22 December 2005,

From the date of acquisition, LM MIF Investment Pty Lid has contributed nil to the net profit of the
consolidated entity,

17, SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Business segment

The Scheme is organised into one main business segment which operates solely in the business of
investment management within Australia. The Scheme operates from Australia (the geographical segment).

{b) Geographic segments
The Scheme operates in Australia and all directly held assets are Australian.
i8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
There are no material contingent assets and liabilities or commitments as at 30 June 2007,
19, EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
No significant events have occurred since balance date which would impact on the financia} position of the

consolidated entity disclosed in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2007 or on the results and cash fiows of the
consolidated entity for the vear ended on that date.




Page 3§ of 40 Docid: 024111855 Org No:089 343 288

32
LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited, [ state thar.

a}) The firancial statements and notes of the Registered Scheme set out on pages $ to 31 are in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i} complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporation Regulations 2001; and
{i1} giving a true and fair view of the Scheme's financial position as a1 30 June 2007, and of its
performance, as represented by the resuits of its operations and its cash flows for the financial

year ended on that date,

b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Scheme will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable; and

¢} the financial statements are in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s Constitution.

On behalf of the Board

LM Investment Management Limited.

Lisa Darcy
Director

Gold Coast

24 September 2007
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J E:!iERNST& YOUNG # 7 Eagle Strect #Tel 6173017 3333
Brishane QL1 4000 Fax 61 7 3011 3100
Australia
PO Box 7878

Waierfrent Place
Brishane QLD 400

Independent aunditor’s report to the unitholders of LM First Mortgage Income
Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund, which
comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2007, and the income statement, statement of changes in
equity and cash flow staternent for the year ended on that date, 2 summary of significant accounting
policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising
the scheme and the entity it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial

year.

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Report

3 The directors of the responsibie entity of the scheme are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards
(including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001, This
responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonabie in the circumstances. In Note 2, the directors also staie that the financial report,
comprising the consolidated/parent financial statements and notes comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that
we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from materia!

misstaterment.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the scheme’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the scheme’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as weli as evaluating the overal! presentation of the financial report,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Linbility limited by a scheme approved under
Professional Siandards Legisiation
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S FRNST & YOUNG

Independence .
In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001,

We have given to the directors of the responsible entity of the scheme a written Auditor's
Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included in the directors’ report,

Auditor’s Opinion
In our opinion:
1. the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of LM First Mortgage Income
Fund and the consolidated entity at 30 June 2007 and of their performance for the
year ended on that date; and
(1)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards {including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2061,

2. the consolidated/parent financial statements and notes or financial report also comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 2.
Ernai e r«wﬁ

Ernst & Young

e HSonwe

Paula McLuskie
Partner

Brisbane

24 September 2007
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& INVESTMENTS COMMISSION
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Form 388

Corporations Act 2001
294, 255, 258-300, 307, 308, 319, 324, 132
Corporstions Regulations

Copy of financial statements and reports

i there is insufficient space in any section of the form, you may photocopy the refevant page(s) and submit as part of this Ipdgement

1.0.08

Company/scheme details Companyischeme narme
LM FRST MORTGACE (NOOME Fomb j
ACN/ARBNARSNPINIABN
O8] 343 2838 |

Lodgement details Who should ASIC contact if there is 2 query about this form?

Firm/organisation

LM

INUEESTMENT MANA GEMENT LTH

Contact name/position description

L CRANT Fiscner (CFo)

ASIC regisiered agent nizmber {if appiicable)

l

N/A

Telephone rumber

LOT S5844560

Postal address or DX addrass

L PO Box 485

[ 2URFeRs PARADISE (oLh A4 -

Tick approprigie box,

: See Guide for definition of large and stmalf
proprietary companies.

Dates on which Bnancial year begins
and ends

ASIC Form 388

1 Reason for lodgement of statement and reports

D A public company or a disclosing entity which is not 4 regisiered scheme o prescribed interest fA)

undertaking
D A registered scheme B
D Amendment of finsreial statemants o directors’ regon {compeny) {C}
D Amendment of financial stalements o directors” report {registered scheme) )
D A farge propristary company ihat is Aot @ disclosing eniity (H)
D A small proprietary company that is controfled by 2 fareign company for all or part of the period and 0

where the compary's profil or foss for the period is not eovered by the staternants lodged with ASIC by a

registered foreign company, company, registerad scheme, of disclosing entity
@ Asmall proprietary company that is requested by ASIC to prepars and lodge statements and reports ()
D Aprescribed interest uaderiaking that is a disclosing entity {K}
Financiat year beging Finan
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DO OM WO EE A

) %‘%L‘&% /
2 © Do
) & W
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2 Details of large proprietary company

See Guide for definition of lsrge and small 1 the compa ny is a targe propriglary campany that is not a disclosing entlly, please tomplete the fotiowing information as
proprietary companies. atthe and of the financial year for which the financial staternents relate:

A Whatls the consolidated revenue of the large praprietary company and the entifes that & controls?

8 Whatis the value of the consolidated g70ss assets of the large propristary company and the entifies that 4 controis?

1 )

C  How many employees are emptoyed by the large proprietary comgeny and the entities that it controls?

l I

[} How many members does the large proprietary company have?

5 ]

3 Auditor’s report

Were the finandial statements audited?

Yes

Mo
% i no, is there a class order exemptisn cureent for augk relish

DYes
DNO

Ifyes, does the audiior's report {s308) for the fnancial year contain a staterment of:
Reasons for the auditor nat beirg safisfied as 1o the malters referred to in 53077

D'z’m
X o

Detaits of the deficiency, failure or shortcoming conceming any matier referred to in $3077

E] Yes
gNu

4 Details of current auditor or auditors

Registered schemes mus! advise ASIC Audilor registration number (for indivigual auditor or authorised o company}
of the appaintment of an auditor on 3 l
Form 5137 Apgoimment of scheme auditor - .
within 14 days of the appointmeni of the ~ Farmily name Given name

auditor, l l L
or
Company name
[ERNST & NOonG ]
ACNIABN
L152 831 1271 49
ar
Fim name (i applicabie}

L]

ASIC Form 388 & October 2008 Page 2 of 4
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4 Continued... Details of current auditor or auditors

A company may have two appointed
auditors, provided Ihat both auditors were
appoirted on the same date, Otherwise, an
appoinied auditor mast resign, be removed
of otherwise ceased before a subsaguent
appointment may be made.

Office, unt, faved

L \WATERFRONT  FLACE

Sireet number and Street name

i\ FAGLE STeeeT

Suburb/City StateTeritory

[ BRISBANE | [Own

Postcoge Country fif not Ausiralia

L 4000 | J

Cate of appoiniment

jnfele

MM Y]

Auditor regisiration nurnber @ iicividual auditar or amthorised auoi company}

Family name Given name

L

or
Company name

I

ACNIABN

or
Firm name (if applicable)

Office_unit, level

Street number and Streal neme

E

Suburb/City StaleTerdory

|

Posicode Country {if net Ausiralia

f ]

SRERERENE

5 Statements and reports to be attached to this form

ASIC Form 388

Finencial statements for the year (as per 5285(2) and actouniing siandards}
income slatement for the year
Balance sheet os at the end of the year
Statement of cash flows for ihg year

Statement of changes i egualy or statement of recognised income and expense for the yesr

If required by sccounting stangards - the consolidated income statemeny, balance Sheal, siatement of cash

fows and starment of changes in equity/statement of FRcogrised income and expense

Notes fo finandial statements {as per s205(3))
Disclpsures requied by the reguations
Notes required by the accounting standard's
Any other information necessary Lo give a rue and fair view (see s287)

The directors’ deciaration about the stalements and notes (a5 per 5295(4))

The tiirectors’ report for the year, including the auditor's independence declaration {as per 5298 to s300A)

Auditor's report required under s308 and 5314

Congise repori (if any) (s314}

8 Cricher 2008

Page 3 of 4
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Sjgnawre | cerfily that the attached documenis marked { ) are & trae copy of Ihe origing! reporls required to be lodged under
5319 of the Corporations Act 2001,

See Guide for dtails of sigratory.
Name |,
[ [\>ADancy ]

%Jacity /
Director

Company secretary
Date signed
ol o] le] 4]
b mM MY Y
Lodgement Send completed and signed forms to: For halp or more information
Australian Securties and Investments Commission, Telephone 1300 300 630
PC Box 4000, Gippstand Maif Centre VI 3841, Emaif Info.gnauitiesBasic sovay
) - ) Web WWW.asie gov,
Or fodge the form electronically by visiting the ASIC website
WWw.asic.0ov.au
l
]
|
i
RSIC Form 388 5 Octeber 2008 Page 4 of 4 \I
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Annexure A

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
ABN: 66 482 247 488
Annual Report
For the year ended 30 June 2009
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
ABN: 66 482 247 488

Annual Report — 30 June 2009

Contents
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The Responsible Entity of LM First Morigage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Ltd (ABN 68 077 208 461).
The Responsible Entity’s registered office is Level 4, RSL Building, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise QLD 4217,
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND 7 |
Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors of LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the LM First Mortgage Income
Fund, present their report of the LM First Mortgage Income Fund (“the Scheme™) for the year ended 30 June 2609,
The directors’ report is not part of the financial report.

DIRECTORS

The following persons held office as directors of LM Investment Management Limited, during the vear or since the
end of the year and up 1o the date of this report:

Name Period of directorship

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003

Mr John Diflen Appointed 8 June 2005; resigned 28 August 2008
Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2006

Ms Francene Mulder Appointed 30 September 2006

Mr John Vallander Lleweilyn Appointed 1 June 2007; resigned 1 July 2008

Mr John O’Suliivan Appointed 27 November 2007

Mr Simon Tickner Appointed 16 December 2008

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Scheme continued the principal activity of investing unitholders’ funds in registered
first mortgages and cash investments in Australia, in accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution and in
accordance with the investment policy of the Scheme as outfined in the current product disclosure document,

The Scheme did not have any employees during the year.

SCHEME INFORMATION

The Scheme is an Australian registered scheme and was constituted in September 1999. The Responsible Entity of
LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited, who has been the Responsible Entity
since registration of the Scheme.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Responsibie Entity and the Scheme is Level 4, 9
Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensiand.

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS

Resuits

During the year the Scheme continued to invest in registered first mortgage loans secured by property in
Australia and cash assets.

& stable unit price of $1.00. The net profit attributable to unitholders for the year ended 36 June 2009 was

The Scheme performed well during the year and delivered to investors rates of interest greater than cash and

339,577,872 (2008: $49,797,814). (
Duriag 2009, the Scheme was and continues to be impacted by events surrounding the global credit crisis. i
Lack of liquidity in the finance sector first saw a genera) slowdown in repayment of loans from those
borrowers who were relying on refinances from other institutions to repay their loans to the Scheme.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Directors’ Report

Secondly, the introduction of the Australian Government Guarantee on bank deposits in Australia and in
other countries has also impacted the Scheme with an increase in withdrawal requests received from
members following the implementation of the guarantee.

Thirdly, a reflection of the credit crisis resulted in the Schemes external financier requiring its joan facility to
be repaid in priority to most investor redemptions.

The directors have negotiated an extension to the loan facility up unti! June 2010 and the directors believe the
Scheme will be able to meet its obligations to the financier under the current repayment plan through
repayment of existing lpans,

These three events in combination with the continuation of unprecedented general market conditions and the
lack of liquidity within the banking sectors investment capital has seen the Scheme suspend the payment of
redemptions as per its constitution and in order to protect investor capital.

Total assets under management were $630,789.449 as st 30 June 2009 (2008: $634,110,877). Investor funds
under management increased during the year by $14,588 808 (2008 decreased by $301,946,394). Investor
funds under management invested by related managed investment schemes in LM FMIF increased by
$12,471,300 (2008: decreased by $175,300,000) to $231,221,300 (2008: $218,750,000).

The performance of the Scheme, as represented by the results of its operations, was as follows:
36 June 2009 30 June 2008

5 $
Net operating income/(foss) before distributions 30,577,872 49797814
Financing costs: Distributions to unitholders (39,271,910} {51,289,597)
(Increase) / decrease in net assets attributable to unitholders ' (305,962) 1,491,783

Net profit/(loss} .- -

UKRITS ON ISSUE

There were 495,661,089 units on issue at 30 June 2009 (2008: 481 ,418,849). During the year 95,766,741
units were issued by the Scheme (2008: 157,043,148) and 81,524,501 were withdrawn {2008: 458,948,936).

SCHEME ASSETS

At 30 June 2009, the Scheme held assets o a total value of $630,789,449 (2008: $634.1 10,877}, The basis
for valuation of assets is disclosed in Note 2 to the financia! statements.

FEES PAID TO THE RESPONSIBLE ENTITY AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The following fees were paid to LM Investment Management Limited and its associated companies out of
Scheme property during the financial year, for funds management and administrative services provided on

behaltf of the Responsible Entity:
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
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2009 2008
) b3

¢ Management fees paid or payable directly to LM Administration Pty Ltd 5,801,477
 “Management fees paid or payable directly to LM Investment i

Management Pty Litd '
©  Expenses incurred by the Responsible Entity and its associated entities

which are reimbursed in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s

Constitution, including administration and custodian fees . -
e Expenses incurred by LM Administration Pty Lid which are reimbursed

in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s Constitution, 960,256 826,743

including administration and custodian fees

¢ Loan origination fees received from borrowers within the Scheme that
were reimbursed to the Responsible Entity for the administration of loan 2,194,460 9,410,607
origination services

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THF, STATE OF AFFAIRS

From 3 March 2009, the Scheme ceased accepting any applications for investments in the fund from any
persons who were not an existing member in the Scheme. In the opinion of the directors, there were no other
significant changes in the state of affairs of the Scheme that occurred during the financial year under review.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE DATE

Other than the matters disclosed in Note 20 of the financial report there has been no matter or circumstance
that has arisen since the end of the financial year that has significantly affected or may affect the Scheme’s
operations in future financial years, the results of those operations of the Scheme’s state of affairs in future
vears. '

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

Further information on likely developments in the operation of the Scheme and the expected results of those
operations has not been included in this report because the Responsible Entity believes it would likely to
result in unreasonable prejudice to the Scheme.,

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The operations of the Scheme are not subject to any particular or significant environmental regulations under
a law of the Commonwealth or a State or Tervitory. There have been no known significant breaches of any
other environmental requirements applicable to the Scheme,
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Directors® Report

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

No insurance premiums are paid for out of the assets of the Scheme in regards to insurance cover provided to
either the officers of LM Investment Management Ltd or the auditors of the Scheme. Provided the officers of
LM Investment Management Ltd act in accordance with the Scheme Constitution and the Law, the officers
remain indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme against losses incurred while acting on behalf of the
Scheme. The auditors of the Scheme are in no way indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act
200! is set out on page 7.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited.

Lisa Darcy
Director
Gold Coast

3G Seprember 2009
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GPO Box 7878 Brisbane OLD 4001

Tel: +61 73011 3333
Fax:+617 3011 3100
WWW.EY.Com/faL

'“ r““”“m“”f”“”“”””“““““Wi’lERNST&YOUNG LS e

Auditor’s Independence Declaration te the Directors of LM Investment
Management Limited as Responsible Entity for LM First Mortgage
Income Fund

in refation to our audit of the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund, for the financial vear
ended 30 June 2009, 1o the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the
auditor independence requirements of the Corporaticns Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional

conduct.

Framte e Moo r\3

Ernst & Young

MF:) H h&a\('_ue

Paula Mcl.uskie
Partner

Brishane

30 September 2009

Liability Emited by 2 scheme approved
ungier Professiona! Standards Legisiation
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2009

INCOME STATEMENT
For the vear ended 30 June 2009

3¢ June 20069 30 June 2008
Motes Scheme Consolidated Scheme
$ $ b
Iricome
Changes in the fair value of investments 3(a) - 28,379 -
interest revenue — loans and advances 3(b) 68,475,219 B1,612,059 81,645,183
Interest revenue — cash assets 3(b) 238,603 1,504,559 1,501 881
Other income 3(a) 10,898,863 2,005,949 2,005 949
Total revenue and other income 79,612,685 85,150,946 85,153,013
Expenses . o
“Manzgemént fees I 12 15410,762 5,801,477 5,801,477
Custedian fees 123,356 157,876 157,876
Advisor commissions 2,167,826 2,640,504 2,640,504
Impairment josses on loans and receivables  9(d) 5,050,938 6,154,911 6,157,884
Finance costs 4(a) 14,082,356 10,380,397 10,380,397
Legal fees 69,789 36,949 36,949
Foreign exchange losses 91,131 - -
Other expenses 4 3,032,655 10,181,018 10,180,112
Total expenses excluding distributions to
unitholders 40,034,813 35,353,132 35,355,199
Nei profit attribuiabie to unithelders 39,577,872 49,797,814 49.797,814
Distributions to unitholders 3{cy? {39,271 910) (51,289,597} (51,289,597
Changes in net assets atiributable {o
uritholders 305,962 (1,491,783)  (1,491,783)
Income tax expense - - .
Changes in net assets altributable fo
unitholders afier income tax expense 365,962 {1,491 783}  (1,491,787)
8
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Neotes to the Financial Statenents 3¢ June 2009

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Prepayments

[nvestments

Loans and receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

. LIABILITIES
Payables
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Distributions payable
Fair value of forward exchange contracts

TOTAL LIABILITIES EXCLUDING
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
UNITHOLDERS

MET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
UNFTHOLDERS

BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2009
38 June 2009 36 June 2008
Scheme Consolidated Scheme
$ $ 5
Notes

14 1,154,822 14,643,332 14,643,332
13 17,318,697 4,797,790 4,797,789
12 6,269,970 7,845,017 7.845.017
8 } - i
9 606,045,959 606,824,738 606,824,738
630,786 449 634,110,877 634,110,877
10 1,051,369 878,796 878,796
1 133,000,000 150,000,000 150,000,000
3y 2,234,098 3,305,615 3,305,015
28,714 40,606 40,606
136,314,181 154,224,417 154,224,417
& 494,475,268 ¢ 479,886,460 479,886,460

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 Jupe 2009

Net assets of the Scheme that are attributable to unitholders are classified as a liabiiity rather than equity. Asa
result there was no equity at the start or end of the year. A Statement of Changes in Net Assets Anributable to

Unitholders is disclosed in Note 6,
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Netes to the Financial Statements 36 June 2009

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the vear ended 30 June 2009

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest and distributions received
Management fees paid

Cther operating expenses

Other income received

GST and withholding tax (paid)/received
Finance cosis paid

Net cash inflow/{outflow) from

operating sciivities 14(b)

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for secured morigage loans
Receipts from settied mortgage loans

Net cast inflow/(outflow} from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from / (repayments) of
borrowings

Receipts from the issue of units
Distributions paid

Payment for rederaption of units

Net cash inflow/(oatflow} from financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease} in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

Cash and cash equivaients at the end of
the year 14{a}

30 June 2009 30 June 2008
Scheme Consolidated Scheme
$ § 5

14,989,628 22,918,375 22,827,388
(14,693,802) 9,724,881y  {5,724,881)
(3,247,801 (17,970,388) (17,990,996)
17,833 4,231,876 4,229,198
261,402 729914 729,911
(13,869,073) (10,169,709)  (10,169,709)
(16,511.813) (9,984,816)  (10.099,089)

(117,016,006)

(320,147,455)

(326,117,304

163,133,558 611,498,185 611,843,835
46,117,552 291,350,730 291,726,531
(17,000,000) 59,533,338 59,533,338
88,028,697 145,782,718 145,782,718
(32,598,445) (41,683,474}  (41,683.474)
(81,524,501)  (458,948,936) (458,948,936)
(43,094,249)  (295316,354)  (295,316,354)
(13488,510)  (I3,950,440)  (13,688,912)
14,643,332 28503772 28332244
1,154,822 14,643,332 14,643,332

10
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2009
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financizl Staiements 30 June 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCJAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 36 JUNE 2069

I. CORPUORATE INFORMATION

The financiai report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund (“the Scheme”) for the vear ended 30 June 2009
was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors of the Responsible Entity on 30
September 2009,

The Scheme is an Australian registered Scheme, constituted on 13 April 1999. The Scheme will
terminate on {3 April 2080 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provision of the Scheme

Comstitution (as amended).

LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, is incorporated and
domiciled in Australia. The registered office of the Responsible Entity is located at Level 4, ¢ Beach
Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensiand.

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Scheme are described in the Directors’ report.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, nnless otherwise stated in
the following text.

a) Basis of recounting

This financiai report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the
Scheme Constitution, and the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, which inciudes applicable
Accounting Standards.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the valuation
of investments in financial assets, which have been measured at fair value or amortised cost.

The balance sheet presents assets and liabilities in decreasing order of liguidity and does not distinguish
between current and non-current items, in accordance with AASB 101 — Presentation of Financial

Sterterments.

Gaing Concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis the Scheme is a going concemn. During the
financial year the Responsibie Entity was able to negotiate an extension o its external financing facilities
until 3.1 July 2009, with a requirement for the full baiance to be repaid in instalments, in priority o any
redemptions over this period. The Scheme was unable to make the required repayments constituted a
breach of its covenants and therefore the Scheme was in default under the facility as at 30 June 2009.

As detaiied in Note 11, since the 30 June 2009 the Responsible Entity negotiated extended terms for the
$158 million facility that had matured. This facility agreement provides a revised facility of $128
million, being the balance of the loan as at 4 September 2009, with a requirement for repayments to be
made quarterly with the full principal balance to be repaid by or on 30 June 2010, in priority to any

13
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redemptions, except for hardship provisions and feeder fund payments for investor distributions and fund
€XpPenses.

The facility agreement requires the Scheme to repay 60% of all net praceeds to the external financer,
being the cash received from the realisation of assets with minimum cumnulative quarterly repayment
amount as detatled below:

Minimuem Redueed
quarterly commitment and ‘
repayment principal !
outstanding
30 November 2009 15,000,000 113,600,000
28 February 2010 15,000,000 98,000,000
31 May 2010 15,000,600 £3,000,000

As at the date of this report, the Scheme is in compliance with all loan covenants in the facility
-agreement and has repaid the first $2.7 million required in the period 1o 38 November 2009,

There remains some uncertainty in the financial and property markets that may impact the timing of
future cash fiows. The directors believe the Scheme will be able to meet its remaining obligations under
the repayment plan through repayment of existing loans including the refinancing of existing loans with
alternative financing providers; the repayment of loans from related entities; the repayment of the prepaid
management fee from LM Administration Pty Ltd; or the continued support from the external financier
or the securing of alternate sources of finance.

On this basis the directors believe the Scheme is 2 going concern and hence the financial report does not
include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or to
the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Scheme not continue as a

going concern.
b) Stetement of compliance

The financiai report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which inciude Australian
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (‘AIFRS"). Compliance with AIFRS ensures
that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes thereto, compkies with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS’) as issued by the International Accounting Standards

Board.

Australian Accounting Standards that have recentiy been issued or amended but are not yet effective have
not been adopted for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2009 are shown in the foliowing tables.
None of the standards issued or amended have an impact on the accounting policies adopted by the

Scheme,
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Reference | Titie Summary Application Empact on Scheme Application
date of financizl report date for
standard* ‘ Scheme*

AASBE 8 Operating New standard replacing I January 2009 | AASB § is a disclosure | | July

and AASB | Segments AASD |14 Segment standard so will have no | 2009

2007-3 + consequential Reporting, which adopts a direct impact on the

amendments fo management reporting amoumnts included in the
other standards approach to segment Scheme's financial
reporting, statements, The
amendments may have
an impact on the
Scheme's segment
disclosures,

AASB 123 | Borrowing Costs Removes expensing option ¢ | January 2009 | The Scheme has not yet | | Juiy

(Revised) + consequential so all borrowing costs determined the extent of | 2009

and amendments to associated with a qualifying the impact of the

AASB other standards asset be capitalised. amendments, if any.

2007-6

AASB 101 Presentation of Introduces 2 siatement of -1 January These smendments are 1 July

{Revised) Financial Statements | comprehensive income. 2609 only expected to affect the | 2009

and AASB + consequential Changes to the tities of the presentation of the

2007-8 amendments to other | financial statements, Scheme’s financial report

standards Requires a “third” or opening and will not have a direct

comparative balance sheet in impact on the

some circumstances measurement and
recognition of amounts
disclosed in the financial
report. The Scheme has
not determined at this
stage whether to present a
single statement of
comptehensive income or
two sepanile glatements,

AASB Amendments 10 The improvements project isan | | January The Scheme has not et [ july

2008-5 Australian annual project that provides a 2009 determined the extent of 2009

Accounting mechanism for making non- the impact of the
Standards arising urgent, but necessary, amendments, if eny.
from the Annual amendments to IFRSs,
Improvements
Project Includes over 28 amendments,

Some changes affect

meusuremnent of transactions,

and others are just editorial.

Relates to annual

improvemenis process 2008

{most of 2007 ED)
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Reference Title Summary Application impact an Scheme Application
dzate of finapcial report date for
siandnrd* Scheme*

AASB Further Amendments | Refer io AASE 2008-5 ahove, I July The Scheme has not yet I July

2008-6 o Austratian 2009 determined the extent of 2008

Accounting These amendments commence the impact of the
Standards arising at a later date than the standard amendments, if any,
from the Annual above
Improvements
Project
AASB Amendments (o Various chanpes, | January 2009 | The Scheme bas not yet tuly
2009-2 Auwstratian Includes fair values disclosed {not mandatory | determined the extent of 2009
Accounting on a tiered basis. if short financial | the impact of the
Standards - Also changes to contractual year thal starts amendments, if any.
Improving maturity analysis disclosures. on or afier 1
Disclosures about Janvary 2009
Financial instruments but ends before
{Amendments 1o 30 April 2009)
AASBT)
AASB 2009 | Amendments to Continues the Annuat t July 2009 The Scheme has not yet HTY
4 Australian Improvements Process / determined the extent of 2009
Accounting Project. the impact of the
Standards arising amendments, if gny,
from the Annual With AASE 2009-5 includes
improvements approx. 15 amendments.
Praject
Relates to annual
improvements process 2009
(2608 ED and some from 2007
ED)
AASE 2009- | Further Amendments | Continues the Annual 1 Jan 2010 The Scheme has not yet i Juty
5 to Australian Improvements Process / determined the extent of 2010
Accounting Project, the impact of the

Standards arising
from the Annual
improvements
Project

With AASB 2009-4' includes '
approx. 15 amendments.

Relates 10 annual
improvements process 2009
(2008 ED and some from 2007
ED)

amendmems, if any,

*designates the beginning of the appiicable anmual reporting period uniess otherwise Stated
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667



Page 20 of 32 Docld: 626048018 Org No:089 343 288

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2009

The following standards have been amended, however they do not affect the Scheme:;

@ & 2 2 & s g

AASB 2008-1: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standard - Share-based Payments:
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

AASB 3 (Revised) and AASB 2008-3: Business Combinations + consequential
amendments to other standards

AASB 127 (Revised) And AASB 2008-3: Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
AASB 2008-11: Amendments to Austraiian Accounting Standard — Business
Combinations Among Not-for-Profit Entities [AASB 3]

AASB 2008-7: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards ~ Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

AASB 2009-6: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Editorial amendments
AASB 2009-7: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Editorial amendments
AASB 2009-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions (amendments to AASB 2)

AASB int. 12 and AASB 2007-2: Service Concession Arrangements + consequential
amendments to other standards

AASB Int. 13: Customer Loyalty Programmes

AASB Int. 14: AASB 119 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

AASB Int. 15: Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

AASB Int. 18: Transfers of Assets from Customers

AASB Int. 17 and AASB 2008-13: Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners +
consequential amendments to other standards

AASB 2007-9: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Review
of AASs 27, 29 and 31

AASB 1004 (revised): Coniributions

AASB int. 1038 (Revised): Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public
Sector Entities

AASB 1049: Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting
AASB 1050: Administered hems

AASB 1051: Land Under Roads

AASE 1052: Disaggregated Disclosures

AASB 2009-1: Borrowing Costs of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities

AASB 2008-9: Amendments to AASB 1049 for Consistency with AASB 101

AASB 2008-10 and AASB 2008-12: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Reclassification of Financial Assets

AASE 2008-2: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Puttable Financial
instruments and Obligations arising on Liquidation

AASB 2008-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Eligible Hedged ltems
(also referred to as hedging portions of risk)

AASB Int. 16: Hedged risk is the foreign currency risk arising between the functional
currency of the net investment and the functional currency of any parent entity. This also
applies to foreign operations in the form of joint ventures, associates or branches.

AASB 2009-3: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards ~ Embedded Derivatives
(Amendments to AASB 139 and Interpretation 9)

17
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c) Basis of consolidation

This financial report of June 2008 comprises the financial report of LM First Mortgage income Fund and
its subsidiary as at at that time (“the consolidated entity”). The financial report of the subsidiary is
prepared for the same reporting period as the Scheme, using consistent accounting policies.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements all intercompany balances and income and expenses
and profit and losses resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full, Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist,

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group and cease to
be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the group.

The scheme owns 100% of the issued share capital of $1 of LM MIF Investments Pty Ltd at 30 June
2009. This company is in the process of being wound up and has not traded during the period. On this
basis consolidated financial statements were not prepared for the vear ended 30 June 2009.

d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

(i) Significant accounting judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have had an impact on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements. No judgements have been determined to be individually significant,

{if) Sigrificant secounting estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on estimates and
assumptions of future events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual

reporting peried are:
Allowance for impairment loss on loans and receivables

The Scheme determines whether loans are impaired on an ongoing basis. This requires an estimation
of the vaiue of future cash flows, The Scheme’s policy for calculation of impairment losses is

disclosed in Note 2(h)¥ii).

¢} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. For the purposes
of the Cash Fiow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined

above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts,

f} Revenue and income recognition

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to the
extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will fiow 1o the Scheme and the revenue can he
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must aiso be met before income is

recognised:

18
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i) Dividend and distribution income

|
| Dividend or distribution income is recognised when the shareholders’ or unitholders’ right to !
! receive the payment is established. '

if) Enterest income

Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues (using the effective interest rate method,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expecied life of
the financial instrument) to the net carrying amount of the financial asset,

iii) Default management fees

Income from defauit management fees is recognised in line with the executed agreement with the
borrower when an event of default occurs.

[ iv) Changes in the fair value of investments !

Gains or losses on investments held for rading are calculated as the difference between the fair
value atf sale, or at vear end, and the fair value at the previous valuation point, This includes both
realised and unreaiised gains and losses.

g} Finance costs

Interest on borrowings is recognised in the income statement in the period to which it relates. Issue costs
asseciated with borrowings are capitalised and amortised over the term of the borrowing to which they
relate using the effective interest method. .

i) Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, or available-for-sale investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or foss, directly atributable transactions costs. The consolidated entity determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Al regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the

Scheme commits to purchase the asset, Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial

assets under contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period established generally by

regulation or convention in the marketplace, |

i) Financial agsets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category ‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are also classified as held for rading uniess they are

| designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are

f recognised in profit or loss.

&
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i} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-~derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value
including transaction costs directly attributable to the financia! asset. After initial recognition, loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and josses are
recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.

Loans and receivables are assessed for impairment at each reporting period. An allowance is made
for doubtful debts when there is objective evidence that the consoiidated entity will not be able to
collect the receivables. impairment Josses are written off when identified. Losses expected as a
result of future events are not recognised. If a provision for impairment has been recognised in
relation 1o a loan, write offs for bad debts are made against the provision. If no provision for
impairment has previously been recognised, write offs for bad debts are recognised as an expense in
the income statement.

The amount provided for impairment of loans is determined by management of the Scheme and the
Credit Committee. A provision is made of loans in arrears where the coliectability of the debts is
considered doubtful by estimation of expected losses in relation to foan portfolios where specific
identification is impracticable.

The components of impaired assets are as follows:

“Loans in arrears” are loans and advances for which there is reasonable doubt that the Scheme will be
able to collect all amounts of principal and interest in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

“Assets acquired through the enforcement of security” are assets acquired in full or partial settlement
of a loan or similar facility through the enforcement of security arrangements.

“Restructured joans” arise when the borrower is granted a concession due to continuing difficulties in
meeting the originel terms and new terms are not comparable to the revised terms. These loans are
removed from ‘restructure loans’ after a period of 12 months of performance against loan revised
terms and conditions. Loans with revised terms are included in ‘ioans in arvears’ when impairment
provisions are required,

When the Responsible Entity determines interest is not recoverable on certain impaired loans, the
interest is suspended and not brought into income. Should the Responsible Entity’s analysis of the
collectability subsequently change the interest will be brought into income at the time it is determined
to be collectible.

i} Advisor Commissions
Advisor commissions may be paid to the unitholders” investment advisors and are calculated s &

percentage of funds invested in the Scheme. These commissions are paid monthly in arrears and are
brought to account on an accrual basis. The Scheme ceases to pay advisor commissions when the related

units are redeemed.
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j} Payables

Payables are carried at amortised cost and represent fabilities for goods and services provided to the
consolidated entity prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the consolidated
entity becomes obliged 1o make future payments in respect of the purchases of these goods and services.

Trades are recorded on trade date, and normally settled within three business days. Purchases of
securities and investments that are unsettled at reporting date are included in payables,

The distribution amount payable to investors as at the reporting date is recognised separately on the
balance sheet as unitholders are presently entitled to the distributable income as at 30 June 2009 under

the Scheme’s Constitution.

Foreign currency received from investors for investment into the Scheme is classified as a payable until it
is subject to hedging by the Scheme entering into forward exchange contracts, at which time the foreign
currency is invested into the Scheme and units issued.

k) Increase/decrease in net assets af{ribuiable to unitholders

Non-distributabie income is transferred directly to net assets attributable to unitholders and may consist
of unrealised changes in the net fair value of investments, accrued income not yet assessable, expenses
accrued for which are not yet deductible, net capital losses and tax free or tax deferred income. Net
capital gains on the realisation of any investments (including any adjustments for tax deferred income
previously taken directly to net assets attributable 1o unitholders) and accrued income not yet assessable
will be included in the determination of distributable income in the same year in which it becomes
assessable for tax. Excess and undistributed income is also transferred directly to net assets attributable to

unitholders.
I Distributions

In accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution, the Scheme fully distributes its distributable income to
unitholders. Distributions are payable monthly. Such distributions are determined by reference to the net
taxable income of the Scheme. Distributable income includes capital gains arising from the disposal of
investments. Unrealised gains and losses on investments that are recognised as income are transferred to
nst assets attributable to unitholders and are not assessable and distributable untif realised Capital losses
are not distributed 1o unitholders but are retained to be offset against any realised capital gains.

m} Goods and services tax (GST)

The GST incurred on the costs of various services provided to the Responsible Entity by third parties
such as audit fees, custodial services and investment management fees have been passed onto the !
Scheme. The Scheme qualifies for Reduced Input Tax Credits {RITC’s} at a rate of 75%. i

Hence investment management fees, custodial fees and other expenses have been recognised in the J
income statement net of the amount of GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).
Accounts payable are inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO is included in
receivable in the balance sheet. Cash flows relating to GST are included in the cash flow statement on it

gross basis.
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The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities recoverable or payable
to the ATO is classified as an operating cash flow,

o} Applications and redemptions

Applications received for units in the Scheme are recorded when units are issued in the Scheme.

Redemptions from the Scheme are recorded when the cancellation of units redeemed occurs. Unit

redemption prices are determined by reference of the net assets of the Scheme divided by the number of

units on issue. : f

o)} Taxatien ‘

Under current legisiation, the Scheme is not subject to income tax provided the distributable income of
the Scheme s fully distributed either by way of cash or reinvestment (i.e. unitholders are presently
entitled to the income of the Scheme).

The price of a unit is based upon market values of underlying assets and thus may include a share of
unrealised capital gains. Should such a gain be realised, that portion of the gain that is subject to capital
gains tax will be distributed so that the Scheme is not subject to capital gains tax. Realised capital losses
are not distributed to unitholders but asc retained in the Scheme 1o be offset against any realised capita)
gains. If realised capital gains exceed realised capital losses, the excess is distributed to unitholders.

p) lInterest-bearing loans and borrowings

All Joans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration
received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loang
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any-discount or premium on
settlement,

3. INCOME AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

#} Nop-Interest income 30 June 2008 3@ June 2068
Scheme Consolidated Scheme
) 3 )

Changes in the fair value of investments - 28,37% -
Other income:

Default management fees 10,751,114 1,724,208 £,724,208
Foreign exchange gains 26,553 - -
Other income 121,196 281,741 281,741

10,898,863 2,005,949 2,005,94%
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b) Interest income

Cash assets
Loans and advances

Consolidated
Aversge
balance Income
$ g
Cash assets 25331,798 1,504,559
Loans and advances 72251481 81,612,059

747,846,659 83,116,618

¢} Bistributions te snithoiders

Distributions paid
Distributions payable

4 EXPENSES

a) Finance costs
Interest on bank ioans
Facility fees

b) Other expenses

Loan origination expenses

Auditor’s remuneration

Product disclosure statement production costs
COther expenses

23

2609
Scheme
Average Average
balance income rate
£ § %
5,026,247 238,603 475
610,693,516 68,475,219 11.21
615,719,763 68,713,822
1008
Scheme
Average Average Average
rate balance Income rate
% 3 ¥ Yo 5
594 25,302,766 1,501,881 5.94 [
1130 722,514,86) 81,645,183 1130 1
11.1T 747 817,627 83,147,064 P11t i
|
38 June 2609 30 Jupe 2008
Scheme Consolidated Scheme
5 $ $
37,037,812 47,984,582 47,584,582
12,234,098 3,305,015 3,305,015
39,271,910 51,289,597 51,289,597
30 Jane 2009 30 June 2008
Scheme Consolidated Scheme
3 5 §
12,218,376 10,021,448 10,021,448
1,863,982 358,949 358,949
14,082,356 16,380,397 10,386,097
2,194,460 0,410,607 8.410,607
478,744 236,001 236,001
22,551 62,972 62,972
336,860 470,438 470,532
3,032,655 10,180,018 10,180,112
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5 AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION 36 June 2009 30 June 2008
Scheme Consolidated Scheme
$ 3 3
Auditand review of the financial reports 461,757 219,235 219,235
Other regulatory audit services 16,987 16,766 16,766
478,744 236,001 236,001
These expenses have been included within ‘Other Expenses’ in the Income Statement.
6. CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS
All units in the Scheme are attributed with a value of $1. The units on issue in the Scheme and the
consolidated entity are equal. Movements in number of units and net assets attributable to unitholders
during the vear were as follows:
30 June 2009 30 Fune 2008
Scheme Scheme
# 5 # 5
Net assets atiributabie to
unitholders
Ciass A
Opening balance 257,995,772 257,995,772 389,274,637 389,274,637
Units issued doring the year 5,022,455 5,022,455 47,186,284 47,186,284
Units redeemed during the (16.932,807) (16,932,807 (185,724,646) {189,724 646)
year
Units issued upon 7,193,991 7,193,991 11,259,497 11,259,497
reinvestment of distributions
Closing Balance 253,279,411 253,279,411 257,995 772 257,995 772
Class B
Opening balance 218,750,000 218,750,000 394,050,000 394,050,000
Units issued during the year 75,347,798 75,347,798 93,870,624 93,870,624
Units redeemed during the (62,877,663) (62,877,663) {269,170,624) (269,170,624)
year
Units issued upon 1,165 1,165 - -
reinvestment of distributions
Ciosing Balance 231,221,300 231,221,300 218,750,000 218,750,000
24
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3¢ June 2009 38 June 2008
Scheme Scheme
# % # 5
Class C
Opening baiance 4,673,077 4.632.47] - -
Units tssued during the year 7,658,444 7,658,444 4,725,809 4,725 80%
Units redeemed during the
year {1,714,031) (1,714,031) (53,666) {(53,666)
Units issued upen
reinvestment of distributions 542,888 542,888 934 934
Change in fair value of ‘
derivatives - 40,606 - f40,604)
Closing Balance 11,160,378 11,160,378 4,673,077 4,632,471
30 June 2009 36 June 2008
Scheme Scheme
TOTAL # $ # §
Opening balance 481,418,849 479,886,460 783,324,637 783,324,637
Units issued during the vear 88,028,697 88,028,697 145,782,717 145,782,717
Units redeemed during the
year (81,524,501) (81,524,501) (458,948,936 {458,948,936)
Units issued on reinvestment
of distributions 7,738,044 7,738,044 11,260,431 11,260,431
Transfers to and from the .
income statement - 305,962 - {1,491,783)
Change in fair value of
derivatives - 40,606 - {40.606)
Closing Balance 495,661,089 494,475 268 481,418,849 479,886,460

Class A consists of unit holders who are entitled to receive the declared distribution rate. There are a
number of subclasses attached to class A.

Class B consists of related scheme unit holders. The distribution rate wiil be determined by the Funds
Committee which is appointed by the Responsibie Entity. The Responsible Entity has the discretion to
waive the whole or part of the 1% trailing commission and the whole or part of its management fee for
this ciass of unit holders,

Class C consist of unit holders who have invested in foreign currencies and are entitled to receive the
declared distribution rate. There are 2 number of subclasses attached to class C.

All unitholders are entitled to receive distributions as declared from time to fime and are entitied to one
vote per unit at unitholders’ meetings. In the event of winding up of the Scheme, all unitholders rank
after creditors and are equally entitled to the proceeds of liguidation.
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Status of investment in fund

On 3 March 2009, the Scheme was closed to new investors and the manager will pay withdrawal requests
up to 365 days afier maturity. From 11 May 2009, the scheme was closed to investors and the manager
suspended redemptions except for hardship provisions and feeder funds payments for investor
distributions and fund expenses.

At 30 June 2009, $112,591,71) of redemptions had been requested by unitholders but not vet paid, Of
the total requested redemptions $5,984,668 related to requests occurring within thirty days of year end.
$106,607,043 had been requested more than 30 days prior to year end. Redemptions also rank behind
repayment of external financing facilities as detailed in Note 2(a).

7. DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

30 June 2009 3¢ June 2008

Distributions paid and payable $ $
Class A 16,473,735 24,431,419
Class B 22,159,255 26,825,153
Class C 638,920 33,025

39,271,910 51,289,597
8. INVESTMENTS 2009 2008 2008

Scheme  Consclidated Scheme
3 5 5

Investment in subsidiary ] - 1
1 - i

The scheme owns 100% of the issued share capital of $1 of LM MIF Investments Pty Lad at 30 June
2009. This company is in the process of being wound up and has not traded during the period. On this
basis consolidated financial statements were not prepared for the year ended 30 June 2009,

9. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES 38 June 2809 38 June 2008
Scheme Coasolidated Scheme
$ $ hY

603,612,957 604,441,258 604,441,259

5,100,000 5,100,000 5,100,000
(2.667,000)  (2,716,521)  (2,716,521)
606,045,959 606,824,738 606,824,738

Secured mortgage ioans

Other unsecured loans - related party
Provision for impairment

Net ioans and advances

a) Aggregate amounis receivable from reinted parties
Directors and director-related entities - secured

Related managed investment schemes - secured

Related managed investment schemes - unsecured

Other related entities

Provision for impairment

7,669,590 7,780,093 7,780,093
35,465,182 1,760,566 1,760,566
5,100,000 5,100,000 3,100,000

48,234,772 14,640,659 14,640,659
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8. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
{Continued)

b} Matarity analysis - Secured Mortgage

Loans
Less than 3 months
3-6 months
6-12 months
12-18 months
18-24 months
24-36 months

¢}  Coencentratior of risk

30 June 2009 30 June 20608
Scheme Consolidated Scheme
b 3 $

408,431,216 207,820,725 207,820,725
59,866,162 97,953,294 07,953,294
37,901,770 143,723,462 143,723,462
96,289,380 101,817,897 101,817,897
1,124,420 24 482 446 24,482,446
- 28,643,435 28,643,435
603,612,957 604,441,239 604,441,259

As at 30 June 2009 no individual loan was greater than 10% of net assets attributable to unit holders,

(2008: nil)

For concentration of risks relating to mortgage type and peographical location refer to Note 16.

d)  Provisions for impairment

The impainment loss expense relating to loans and receivables comprises:

Specific provision

Collective impairment provision
Impairment losses realised direetly in the
Income Statement

Specific Provision

Opening balance

Impairment losses provided for during year
Utilisation of provisions (loans realised)
Closing balance

Collective impairment provision

Opening balance

Impairment losses provided for during year
Closing balance

TOTAL PROVISION

The collective provision for impairment is calculated by placing loans into pools with similar risk

1,540,000 3,278,509 3,278,509

3,516,938 2,876,402 2,879,375

5,056,938 6,154,911 6,157,884

30 June 2009 3¢ Fune 2008
Scheme Consolidated Scheme
$ b b

2,716,521 1,025,255 1,025,225

1.540,000 3,278,509 3,278,509
(1,589,521 {1,587,243) {1,587,243)

2,667,000 2,716,521 2,716,521

2,667,000 2,716,521 2,716,521

characieristics and coliectively assessing for impairment.
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30 June 2009 36 June 2008
Scheme Consclidated Scheme
$ $ $

Movement in Default loans

101,159,653 83,826,384 83,826,384
268,567,327 59,907,804 59,907,804

(15,307) (754,152)  (754,152)
(38,237,959)  (41,820383) {41,820,383)

Gross defanlt loans opening balance
New and increased default loans
Balances written off

Returned to performing or repaid

331,473,714 101,159,653 101,159,653

Gross default loans closing balance
(2,667,000) (2,716,521}  (2,716,521)

Specific provision

Net default loans 1328/806,714 98443112 98.443,132

At 30 June 2009, the balance of loans that were past due but not impaired was $304,553,260 (2008: 7
$63,789,822). As per the Scheme’s policy, loans are impaired once they exceed 90 days overdue. !

At 30 June 2009, $26,920,454 of loans were individually impaired, with a total impairment loss of !
$2,667,000, ;

Loans are secured by land, development property or completed construction property. The fair value of
security over {oans that are past due but not impaired at 30 June 2009 was $3 89,017,914 (2008:

$73,192,4686).

As at 30 June 2009 the Scheme was mortgage in possession of security relating to loans in default of
$331.5million (2008: $46.4million) and had taken possession of assets offered as collateral security
vatued at $415 4million (2008: $59.8million).

Interest on arrears loans is suspended and not brought to account if the Responsible Entity considered that

the amounts are not ultimately recoverable from the sale proceeds of the property. The amount of
suspended interest at 30 June 2009 totalled $6,532,157 (2008: $3,078,983).
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1k PAYABLES 30 June 2009 30 June 20608
Scheme  Consolidated  Seheme
$ $ $
Foreign currency awaiting investment 2,242 445,982 445982
Other payables 1,049,127 432,814 432814
1,051,369 878,796  B78,796

iL INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

3¢ June 2009 38 June 2008
Scheme Consslidated Scheime
L3 5 ¥
Secured bank Ioan 133,000,006 150,000,000 150,000,000

On 4 September 2009, the Directors of the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, LM Investment
Management Limited, and the Scheme’s external financier negotiated extended terms for the $150
million faciiity that had matured. This facility agreement provides a revised facility of $128 milkion,
being the batance of the foan at that date, with a requirement for repayments to be made quarterly with
the full principal balance to be repaid by or on 30 June 2010, in priority to any redemptions.

The facility agreentent requires the Scheme to repay 60% of all nef proceeds to the external financer,
being the cash received from the realisation of assets with minimum cumuiative quarierly repayment
amount as detailed in Note 2,

The interest rate payable on the facility is BBSY +4.50% per annum. In the event that the repayment is
not made in accordance with the repayment plan mentioned above, the interest rate payabie is increased

to BBSY + 6.50%%.

As af the date of this report, the Scheme is in compliance with all ioan covenants in the facility
agreement and has repaid the first $2.7 million required in the period to 30 November 2009,

iz RELATED PARTIES

Responsible Entity

The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fond is LM Investment Managzment Limited
(ABN 68 077 208 461). Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on
behalf of the Responsible Entity by LM Administration Pty Litd, an associate of the Responsible Entity. ]
LM Administration Pty Ltd is paid & management fee directly from the Scheme.

On | February 2009 the Scheme’s arrangernent in relation to management fees was amended. The basis

of the management fee calculation remains unchanged however the revised agreement provides that LM
investment Management Limited is required to be paid up to 51 million per month for administration and
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fund management services, with any monthly management fee in excess of $1 million o be paid to LM
Administration Pty Ltd for administration services provided on behalf of LM Investment Management

Limited.

Custodian
The Custodian of the Scheme is LM Investment Management Limited.

Birectors

The names of each person holding the position of director of LM Investment Manzagement Limited
during the financial year are disclosed in Note 15,

Directors’ remuneration
No amounts are paid by the Scheme directly to the directors of the Responsible Entity. The amount of

remuneration paid by the Responsible Entity and its related parties to directors of the Responsible Entity in
connection with their responsibilities for the Scheme is separately identified in Note 15.

Directors’ holdings of units
The interests of L.M Investment Management Limited and its associates in the Scheme at vear-end are set

out below,
30 June 2009 30 June 2008
Scheme Consolidated Scheme
5 -3 $

- LM Investment Management Limited - - -
- Directors and director related entities - - -
- Other Associates of LM Investment

Management Limited 231,221,300 218,750,000 218,750,000

Investing activities

The Scheme may purchase and sef] units in other approved schemes or investment entities operated by
LM Investment Management Limited or its associates in the ordinary course of business at application
and redemption prices calculated in accordance with the constitutions of those schemes. At 30 June 2009
the Scheme had no investments in other schemes operated by LM Investment Management Limited or its

affiliates (2008: nil),

Other fransactions with the Scheme

From time to time the directors of LM Investment Management Limited, or their director-related entities,

may invest or withdraw from the Scheme. These investments or withdrawals are on the same terms and

conditions as those entered into by other Scheme investors. Apart from the details disciosed in this note,

no director has entered into a material contract with the Scheme since the end of the previous financial ,
year and there were no material contracts involving directors’ interests subsisting at year-end.

Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the Responsible
Entity by LM Administration Pty Ltd, an associate of the Responsible Entity. LM Administration Pry Ld
is paid a management fee for these services directly from Scheme assets. Og | February 2009 the
Scheme’s arrangement in relation to management fees was amended. The basis of the management fee
calculation remains unchanged however the revised agreement provides that LM Investment
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Management Limited is required to be paid up to $1 million per month for administration and fund
managemerit services, with any monthly management fee in excess of $1 miilion to be paid to LM
Administration Pty Ltd for administration services provided on behaif of LM Investment Management
Limited.

During the year, management fees of 315,410,762 (2008 5,801,477) were paid or payable by the
Scheme, Of these fees $5,100,000 (2008: $Nil) was paid or payable to LM Investment Management
Limited and $10,310,762 (2008: $5,801,477) was paid or payable to LM Admiristration Pty'Lid.

During the year, loan origination fees received from borrowers within the Scheme were $4,366,378
(2008: $10,098,488) of which $2,194,460 was reimbursed by the Scheme to the Responsible Entity for
the administration of loan origination services {2008: §9,410,607).

On 28 August 2008, it was resolved by the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity, to transfer three
mortgage loans to the value of $33,513,345 and the related first mortgage security to the LM Maniged
Performance Fund (LM MPF). There is a fixed charge over these three specific secured properties phisa
floating charge over the remaining assets of LM MPF to provide security to the Scheme in the event of
default by the LM MPF. This loan between the Scheme and LM MPF is interest bearing at 10%, with the
interest being capitalised and was due to be repaid to the Scheme on 30 June 2009, Subsequent to the
year end, the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity has agreed to extend the repayment term of the
loan to 28 Aupust 2010, ro other changes were made to the terms of this facility. Since the year end, LM
MPF has sold one of the properties and has repaid $3.6 milfion to the Scheme.

The Scheme has advanced funds to a related scheme, the LM ianaged Performance Fund, to finance a
Joint venture entered into with a borrower of the Scheme. At 30 June 2009, the balance of the loan to the
refated Scheme was $9,563,238 (2008: $7,008,047), which is secured by first mortgage of the assets of
the unrelated borrower and by a guarantee from the LM Managed Performance Fund. This loan has been
subject to the normal credit approval review procedures of the Scheme.

The LM MPF has second mortgages on loans that are first mortgages of the LM First Mortgage Income
Fund totalling $46,965,578 (2008: $31,024,921). The LM MPF may on occasion pay development and
construction costs on those related loans. As part of the normal role as second morigagee, the related
scheme will fund interest payments from time to time within approved toan facility limits. During the 30
June 2009 year, interest payments totalling $1,903,971 (2008: $3,955,100) were paid from the related
scheme on behalf of the borrowers,

At 30 June 2008, management assigned a $5, 100,000 receivable within the Scheme from LM Investment
Management Limited to LM MPF. The loan will accrue interest ay 0% per annum and is for a period of
12 months, expiring on 30 June 2009 and is unsecured. Since 30 June 2009, the Board of Directors of the
Responsible Entity has agreed to extend the repayment term of this receivable to 30 June 2010,

During the year the Scheme paid a loan origination fee to LM Investment Management Limited, the
Scheme’s responsibie entity of $375,000. LM Investment Management Limited assigned this receivable ’
to LM Administration Pty Limited, a related party. The directors of the Responsible Entity agreed to

extinguish the liability of the Scheme in relation to this expense by reducing prepaid management fees ”
payable to the Scheme by LM Administration Pty Limited. ‘
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Responsible Entity remuneration received or
due and receivable

L

Management fees for the year paid or
payable directly to LM Administration
Pty Ltd

Management fees for the year paid or
payable to LM Investment Management
Limited

Expenses including administration
expenscs incurred by the Responsible
Entity and its associated entities, which
are reimbursed in accordance with the
provisions of the Constitution,
Expenses including administration
expenses incurred by LM Administration
Pty Ltd, which are reimbursed in
accordance with the provisions of the
Constitution.

Loan origination fees received by
borrowers within the Scheme that were
reimbursed to the Responsible Entity for
the administration of loan origination
services

Custodian’s remuneration

[

Custodian’s fees paid by the Scheme

Balance with related parties
Aggregate amounts receivable from related
parties by the Scheme were as follows:

i). These amounts are included in prepayments of $6,269,970 at 30 June 200
to related parties by the Scheme. The average monthi
37,973,684 (2008: $6,632,63)) which was non-
amount if calculated at the weighted average cash rate of 4.75% (2008: 5.24%) would have been
$378,750 (2008: $393,978). If this revenue had been coliected, the sum fore

LM Administration Pty Ltd (management
fees prepaid by the Scheme)/s)
Australian International Investments Pty
Limited (i})

LM Managed Performance Fund (/ii}
LM Currency Protecied Australian
Income Fund (iv)

30 June 2009
Scheme

h

10,310,762

5,100,000

960,259

2,194,460

123,356

6,000,000
7,669,589

41,745,359
100,000

paid to LM Administration Pty Lid as management fees during the year.

This prepaid 'management fee will be recovered throu

offset future payable management fees.

30 June 2008
Consclidated Scheme

3 $
5,801,477 5,801,477

826,743 826,743
8,410,607 3,381,487

157,876 157,876
6,716,960 6,716,960
7,780,083 7,780,003
5,100,000 5,100,000

9. No amounts are payable
y balance of prepayments during the year was
interest bearing. Interest foregone on the above

gone would have been

gh LM Administration Pry Lid’s Agreement o

683



Page 36 of 52 Docld: 026048018 Org No:089 343 288

i),

i),

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
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Peter Charles Drake is a director and guarantor of Australian International Investment Services Pty
Ltd which is a joint borrower in a secured loan facility outstanding to the Scheme as at 30 June 2009
for $7,669,58% (2008: $7,780,093), This transaction was approved on an arms length basis and is on
normal terms and conditions.

This amount refates to the assignment of debt of $5,100,000 from LM Administration Pty Ltd to LM
MPF which was originally a prepayment of management fees from the Scheme to LM Administration
Pty Ltd. Plus the loans and receivable and associated interest receivabie balance at 30 June 2009 of
$36,645,359.

This amount relates to payments for margin calls on behalf of LM Currency Protected Australian
Income Fund. This transaction was paid on normal terms and at arms length.

Unitholder investing activities

Details of holdings in the Scheme by LM Investment Management Limited, its affiliates including
directors and director related persons or other schemes managed by LM Investment Management Limited
are set out below; ;

Enutity Investment interest Usits issued Units Distributions
atyearend  held inthe  during the redeemed paid and
$ scheme at YEeRE during the payable
year end year
30 Sune 20609
LM Currency Protected Australian 126,675,000 25.56% 38,774,376 3139937 12,847,979
income Fund
LM Institutional Currency Protected 10,069,000 2.03% 7,545,535 4,976,535 1,058,556
Austraiian Income Fund
LM Managed Performance Fund - - 16,450,507 16,900,507 i23,644 :
LM Whoiesale First Mortgage 54,477,300 19.06% 12,023,535 9,046,235 8,132,510
income Fund : j
LM Australian Income Fund - 0% 555,000 555,000 3,565 ‘
Dhani Darcy - 0% 216 216 1% :
Harold Ward - - - - - )
Total 231,221,368 46.658%  75349,16%  6£2,877.869 22,159,273
Entity Envestment  Interest Units issued  Units Distributions i
atyearend heldin the  duringthe  redeemed paid gnd
3 Scheme a¢ year during the  payable
year end vear
30 June 2608
LM Cumrency Protected Australian 119,300,000 24.78% 43,500,000 85,700,000 14,041,838 E
income Fund : |
LM Institutional Currency Protected 7,500,000 1.56% 14,150,000 35,400,000 2,023,890 {
Australian Income Fund
LM Managed Performance Fund 450,000 0.09% 29,420,624 33,770,624 395,977
LM Wholesale First Mortgage 21,500,000 15.01% 6,800,000 114,300,000 10,362,449
Income Fund
Fotal 218,750,000 45.44% 93,876,875 169,190,891 26,824,405
33
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13. RECEIVABLES 30 June 2009 30 June 2008
Scheme  Consolidated Scheme
b 3 $
Interest and distribution receivable - 54,641 54,641
Mortgage interest receivable 1,599,427 1,727,883 1,727,883
Mortgage interest receivable - related party ' 3,132,014 - -
Penalty interest receivable 192,525 51,531 51,531
Default management fees receivable 11,995,827 2,762,333 2,702,333
GST receivable 163,315 84,908 84,908
Other 235,590 176,494 176,493
17,318,698 4,797,790 4,757,789
4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
30 June 2609 30 Fure 2008
Scheme  Consolidated Scheme
$ 3 3

) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivaients comprise:
- Cash at bank and in hand 1,154,822 14,643,332 14,643,332

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is $1, 154,822 (2008: $14,643,332).

As at 30 June 2009 $580,941 (2008: $293,000) of cash at bank was held in foreign exchange margin
accounts and therefore was not available for use by the Scheme.

b} Recenciliation of change in net assets attributable to unitholders to net cash Hows from
operating activities

30 June 2009 38 June 2008
Scheme Consolidated Scheme
$ $ $
Change in net assets attributable to 305,962 {1,451,783) (1,491,783)
unitholders '
Adfustments for:

5,056,938 6,154,911 6,157,884
(50,395,681)  (59,070.947)  (59,104,073)

Non cash impairment expense
Non cash interest income

Distributions to unitholders ' 39,271,910 51,285,597 51,289,597

(Increase)/decrease in interest receivable (3,257,517 2,481,469 2,418,863

(Increase)/decrease in other receivables ‘ (8,654,940)  (9,745,107)  (9,745,107)

Increase/(decrease) in payables 1,161,515 397,044 375,530

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating

activities . 16,511,813 {9,984,816) {16,099,089)
34
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¢} Reinvestment of distributions
During the financial year, the Scheme issued 7,738,044 units {2008: 11,260,43 1) as 2 result of reinvestment
of distribution by unitholders totaling $7,783,044 (2008: $11,260,431}. These transactions have not been
inciuded in the Cash Flow Statement.
15, KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
(=} Details of Key Management Personnel

(i} Key Management Personnel

The Key Management Personnel (“KMP”) of the Scheme were deemed to be the Directors of the Responsible
Entity. The Directors of the Responsible Entity during the year were:

Executive directors

Mir Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003

Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2006

s Francene Maree Mulder Appointed 30 September 2006
Mr Simon Tickner Appointed 16 December 2008

Non-executive directors

Mr John Dilion Appointed 8 June 2005; resigned 28 August 2008
Mr John Vallander Liewellyn Appointed | June 2007, resigned 1 July 2008

Mr John O’ Sullivan Appointed 28 November 2007

(b} Compensation of Key Management Personnel
{i} Compensation Policies and Principles

Remuneration of KMP is paid by LM Administration Pty Ltd, appointed by LM Investment Management
Ltd as per its service agreement with that entity. The KMP do not receive any remuneration directly
from the Scheme and there are no agreements in place between the KMP and the Scheme, The
remuneration of KMP as disclosed below has been allocated based on the each KMP’s cost of
remuneration applicable to the Scheme. The principles used to allocate these costs (for disclosure
purposes only) are discussed below.

(i) Executive Directors

The Executive Directors of the Board of the Directors of LM Investment Management Ltd are
responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the KMP of the Responsible
Entity. The Executive directors assess the appropriateness of the nature and amount of emoluments of the
KMP on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall
objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality board. It is
intended that the manner of pavment chosen will be optima] for the recipient without creating undue cost
for the Responsible Entity,

It is the Executive Directors’ policy that employment agreements shall only be entered into with the
Executive Directors of the Responsible Entity, but with no other parties.
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(i) Non- executive directors

Fees paid 1o non-executive directors are based on decisions made by the Executive Directors. This takes
into account workload requirements and responsibilities of each Director. Fees for duties as Direciors are
not paid to executive Directors as their remuneration is provided as part of their normal terms and
conditions.

Gy Principles of KMP Renumeration Allocations

For all schemes managed by the Responsible Entity, the cost of tota] KMP remuneration has been
allocated to each scheme. The Responsible Entity has estimated the amount of time spent by each KMP
performing responsibilities and duties to individual schemes, and on a percentage basis, has allocated the
remuneration cost to each scheme. Where a KMP has not spent time specifically on a scheme, but rather
has acted in a role as KMP of the Responsible Entity only, remuneration cost has been allocated evenly
across all schemes.

36

687



Page 40 of 52 Docld: 026048018 Org No:089 343 288

§ilj1 01 UON2{31 U1 $3INSO[ISIP SA0GE Ay Uy P2IOALJ3] UI3q S JUNOWE O "Aueduros 3
B! TBGE 1J3URG UoLRULILIBL B 0] PARIUQ AIv JAPINIA] 4 PUR UaAOH Jap UeA 3 ‘Roreq] T ‘g
Y1 WY AP03Np el(] 10134 01 pred are sadem pue Arepes on

41 30 drgssaumo ur 3Fueys juesy

‘HPBUIG 2unIRg [wiuslod

1ud1s v 1o wswopdws Jo uonessas uo siqeded
Fjqisuodsay Y Jo S3ANN0AND Sy wu SIS a1 Jo Aue 1o Suedwios
“Aiug a|qisuodsay ays 3o sareys Ateuipio 24130 55001 J0 JPUMO [R13LIUIG I S| BYRICE SI|IBYD) JA1a

- 89L°CEL - - - §P0°F11 - - LT
- YT - . - 81 - - 8502 { ‘URAING, O
- 861 - . - 0ig - - 2rb's A ‘BA[MIL]
- g51L'¢ - - - olE - - 8p'e [ ‘wopig
- Seo'se - - - £68°C - - PIeE s34 IAPIRA
- £ig'oc - - - 8p0°E - - $98'cE =+ ‘UBAOH Jap teA
- 190'zs - - - 667°0 - - oLy «+I7 “Aarmq
- - - - - - - - - «Od ‘DR
% 3 Y 3 3 [ g 3 [
pAERI [HTEEST S Fiigog 303
DUFLIo)Iad 850 ], AViOL FETET Ainhy FEEDTERFESY] 33dng ATy HOR D7) FATE[EG dWI TEjicadg
JIRUIEo[dwTy 1564 Aleinig B00Z
- 750'c6 - - - £89°% E 086", ZLEBL
. [T - - - - - - 9p8E { “UBAINS.O
- Z¥s9l - - - ree'y - oFET AR S “yainpl g,
- 9£.'61 - - - b9l - 966°1 96091 sed "FOPINY
- £Lb'TE - . - 679'1 - 8661 87881 #471 "HIAOH] 3P A
- SEPOE - - - 990'7 - Zr9°e LTL'ST wu AT K]
- - - - - - - - . «Dd g
% 3 3 T £ g g 3 S
(EITIEN SHERET fijsusg §niog Eg
SIUEWLI0] 13T 910, TVIoL ByG LD R T T KETi TS LR [T I RTIN] UsEs W ATEEE JWS paOIaedy
JERTHRG|I] J50,] Ering 6G0Z

6007 URF (O SIUNWSIETS [RDURUL 3T OF SIJON]
UGN AWOOINI HIVILUOW LSHId W1

I fO HonDLeunuEy {a)

688



M

Page 41 of 52 Docld: 026048018 Org No:08% 343 288

Compensation by category: Key Management Personnel

2009 2008 2008
Scheme Consclidated Scheme

b 5 3
Short term 86,352 122,723 122,723
Post employment 6,680 11,045 11,045
Other long term - - -
Termination benefits - - -
Equity based payment - - .
Other - - -

93,032 133,768 133,768
Loans to Specified KMP

The Scheme has not made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly any loans to the KMP or their
related entities during the period.

{c) Other Transactions and Balances with Specified KMP

Other than those items disclosed in the related party Note 12, the Scheme has no other transactions
and balances with specified KMP.

16. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
a} Financial Risk Management Objectives, Policies, snd Processes
Risks arising from holding financial instraments are inherent in the Scheme’s activities, and are

managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement, and monitoring. The scheme is
exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, and market risk.

Financial instruments of the Scheme comprise investments in financial assets for the purpose of
generating a return on the investment made by unitholders, in addition to derivatives, cash and cash
equivalents, net assets atiributable to unitholders, and other financial instruments such as irade debtors
and creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The Responsible Entity is responsible for identifying and controiling the risks that arise from these
financial instruments.

The risks are measured using a method that reflects the expected impact on the results and net assets
attributable to unitholders of the Scheme from reasonably possibie changes in the reievant risk
variables. Information about these risk exposures at the reporting date, measured on this basis, is
disclosed below. Information about the total fair value of financial instruments exposed to risk, as well
as compliance with established investment mandate limits, is aiso monitored by the Responsible Entity.
These mandate limits refiect the mvestment strategy and market environment of the Scheme, as well as
the level of risk that the Scheme is willing to accept.

38

689



Page 42 of 52 Docld: 026048018 Org No:089 343 288

This information is prepared and reported to relevant parties within the Responsible Entity on a regufar
basis as deemed appropriate, including the fund manager, compliance manager, other key management,
Risk and Investment Committees, and ultimatety the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity,

As part of its risk management strategy, the Scheme uses foreign exchange contracts to manage
exposures resulting from changes in foreign currencies.

Concentrations of risk arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with
the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities,
or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political, and
other conditions.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Scheme monitors its exposure 1o ensure
concentrations of risk remain within acceptable ievels and either reduces the eXposure or uses
derivative instruments and collateral to manage the excessive concentrations when the arise.

b} Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to the financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obiigation and cause the Scheme to incur a financial loss.

With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Scheme, other than derivatives, the
Scheme’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with the current exposure
equal to the fair value of these instruments as disclosed in the Balance Sheet. This does not represent
the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values, but best
represents the current maximum exposure at the reporting date.

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive
fair values.

The Scheme minimizes credit risk by:

- undertaking credit assessment procedures on prospective borrowers

- dealing with Australian regulated banks for cash balances;

- obtaining independent valuations for alf loans; and

- maintaining an average loan to valuation ratio not exceeding 75% of the mortgage securities.

At year end, 72% of the balance of mortgage loans is secured on construction/development property
(2008: 76%) and 28% on commercial property (2008: 24%).
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- y

Risk concentrations of credit risk
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by counterparty and by geographical region. The percentage
of loans secured by property in different geographical locations is as follows:

2009 2008

Sydney CBD 0.00% 0.00% {
Within 40km of Sydney CBD 9.64% 11.063% |
New South Wales — Other 22.33% 21.29% '
Melbourne — CBD 0.00% 0.00%
Within 40km of Melbourne CRD 6.33% 7.22%
Victoria ~ Other 0.71% 2.34%
Brisbane CBD 0.00% $.00%
Within 40km of Brisbane CBD 0.00% 2.11%
Queensland — Other 52.09% 35.80%
Canberra — Other 1.15% 1.29%
Northern Territory 0.00% 5.47% é
Western Ausirafia 7.02% 9.00%
Tasmania 0.53% 0.45% _f

100.00% 100.00% |

The maximum credit risk exposure at year end in relation to mortgage loan is the carrying vakue of
the assets as indicated in the balance sheet. No single mortgage investment exceeds 1 0% of the !
Scheme which ensure that there is no concentration of risk. ‘

The scheme has a concentration of credit risk relating to the derivative instruments as all foreign
currency swaps are entered into with the same counterparty.

Credit quality of mortgage loans

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Scheme using internal risk rating categories in
accordance with the investment mandate of the Scheme. The scheme's exposure in gach category is
monitored on & daily basis. This review process aliows the Responsible Entity to assess the potential
loss as a result of risks and take corrective action,

As at 30 June 2009 the Scheme was mortgage in possession of security relating to loans in default of
$331.5million (2008: $46.4miilion) and had taken possession of assets offered as collateral security
valued at $415 4mitlion (2008: $59.8million).

€} Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Scheme may not be able 1o meet its obligations in relation to
investment activities or funding unit holder redemptions.

The nature of the investments entered into by the Scheme commands that fiquidity be managed
cautiously and aligned to the redemptions policy outlined within the constitution of the scheme. At
30 June 2009, the redemptions requested from unitholders was 1 12,591,711 (2008: $15,309,573).

On 3 March 2009, the Scheme was closed to new investors and the manager will pay withdrawal
requests up to 365 days after maturity. From 11 May 2009, the Scheme was closed to investors and
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the manager suspended redemptions except for hardship provisions and feeder funds payments for
investor distributions and fund expenses. At 22 September 2009, $124,072,370 of redemptions has
been requested by unitholders but not vet paid. Redemptions rank behind repayment of external

financing facilities as detailed in Note 2{a).

The Responsible Entity employs risk management strategies to ensure that the Scheme is able to meet
its obligations as above. The liquidity risk associated with the need to satisfy unitholders requests
for redemptions are mitigated by offering fixed term investment periods for investors and by
maintaining sufficient cash funds to satisfy usual fevels of demand for at-call investments.

In order to minimise liquidity risk, management assesses and monitors the liquidity requirements of
both unitholder redemptions and investment activities and ensures that at all times the Scheme has
adequate cash and cash equivalents to cover fund obligations and that liquidity is managed within ihe

Scheme’s policies and limits.

Marturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Scheme comprise trade and other payables, distributions payable, net assets
attributable to unitholders, fair value of foreign exchange contracts and the secured bank loan. Trade
and other payables and distributions payable have no contractual maturities but are typically settied
within 30 days, Foreign exchange contracts mature within 12 months of yesr end.

Net assets attributable to unit holders mature over the following periods:

Period from 30 June 2009 Vilue
Due and payable* $112,591,711
< 12 months $344,402,653
12-24 months $34,732.482
24-36 months $2,404,864

- 36-48 months $343,558
>48 months -
Total 3494,475,268

* This balance represents redemptions requested but not paid at 30 June 2009 of $112,591,711.
The secured bank loan (Note 11) is repayable by 30 June 2010, as detailed in Note 2(a). When

drawn, the loan is secured by the assets of the Scheme.

d) Market risk
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Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices.
Market risk is managed and monitored using sensitivity analysis, and minimised through ensuring
that all investment activities are undertaken in accordance with established mandate limits and

investment sirategies.

Irterest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows
or the fair value of financial instruments. The Scheme has established lmits on investments in
interest bearing assets, which are monitored on a daily basis.

The Scheme’s exposure Lo interest rate risk and the effect weighted average interest rate for classes of
fimancial assets and financial liabilities is set out below:
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2009

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Scheme’s income statement to a reasonably possibie
change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant.

The sensitivity of the income statement is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the interest
income for one year, based on the financial instruments held at 30 June 2009,

Accounting assumptions
The basis points sensitivity is based on the historical volatility of changes in interest rates.

2009
Change in basis points Sensitivity of interest
income (300¢°s)
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
50 50 3,124 3,124
Financial instruments 100 100 6,247 6,247
2008
Change in basis points Sensitivity of interest
income ($000°s)
Increase  Decreqse Increase  Decrease
50 50 3,869 3,869
Financial Instruments 100 100 7,738 7,738

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due

to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Scheme enters into foreign exchange contracts principally to
hedge the foreign exchange risk implicit in the value of the investor funds denominated in foreign
currencies and to secure a particular exchange rate for s planned purchase or sale of invesiments. The termn
of the contracts rarely exceeds twelve months.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts held at 30 June 2009 was ($6,370) (2008: %40,606).

The nominal Austraiian dollar value of forward exchange contracts held at 30 June 2009 was $11,253,138
(2008: $4,817,423).

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Scheme had significant exposure at 30 June 2009 on
its monetary assets and liabilities and forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably
possible movement of the currency rate against the Australian Dollar on the income statements, with all

other variables held constant.

Feoreign currency
Investments in the fund are hedged in the relevant currency against Australian dollar currency movements.

The fund manages foreign currency risk through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts (FFEC).
The FFECs are facilitated by severai banking firms. This reduces currency exposure to the fund and

investors. The above table is only applicable if the FFEC facilitator is unable to meet its obligation and the
fund therefore seeks an alternative party to transact the FFEC,
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Accounting Assumptions- ¥Variability of foreign currency
The sensitivity is based on the volatility of changes in giobal currency.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2069

2009
Currency AUD equivalent in Change in currency rate in | Effect on net assets attributable
exposure by currency % to unitholders
{0G(°s) (000°s)
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
EUR 1,716 10 16 172 172
GBp 2,725 10 10 273 273
NZD 4,523 10 10 452 452
TRY 301 10 10 30 30
Ush 1,356 16 10 156 156
HKD 182 10 10 18 18
SGD 217 10 10 22 22
THB 33 10 10 3 3
2008
Currency AUD equivelent in Change in currency rate in | Effect on net assets attributable
exposure by currency % to unithoiders
(00G0°s) {000's)
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
CAD 166 i 10 11 11
EUR 85 10 10 9 g
GBP 1,507 10 10 151 5]
JPY 155 10 10 16 16
NZD 2,179 10 10 218 218
TRY 1306 10 10 13 13
USD 656 19 i0 66 66
Eguity Risk

The Scheme is not subject io equity risk at 3¢ June 2009,
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND _ |
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2009

17. FAIR VALUES

The Scheme’s financial assets and liabilities included in the Batance Sheet are carried at their fair vahue as
disclosed by class of financial instruments or at amounts that approximate their fzir values, ‘

Refer to Note 2 for the methods and assumptions adopted in determining fair values for investments,

i8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Business sepment

The Scheme is organised into one business segment which operates solely in the business of investment
management within Australia,

(b) Geographic segments

The Scheme operates in Australia and all directly held assets are Australian. Geographic concentrations
disclosed in Note 16(b}.

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
There are no materfal contingent assets and liabilities or commitments as at 30 June 2009,

20, EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

No significant events have occurred since balance date which would impact on the financial position of the
Scheme disclosed in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2009 or on the resuits and cash flows of the Scheme for
the year ended on that date, other than those detailed below:

{a} Renegotiation of the Loan Facility

On 4 September 2009, the Directors of the Responsible Entity, LM Investment Management Limited, of the
Scheme and the Scheme’s external financier negotiated extended terms for the $150 million facility which
matured on 31 July 2009. This revised facility for $128 million expires on 30 June 2010. A condition of the
revised facility is full repayment of the facility by 30 June 2016 in line with the agreed repayment plan, as
disclosed in Note 2(a).

The interest rate payable on the extended facility is BBSY + 4.50% per annum. in the event that the
repayment is not made in accordance with the repayment plan mentioned above, the interest rate payable is
tncreased to BBSY + 6.50%.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

I accordance with a resolution of the Directars of LM Investment Management Limited, I state that:

a) The financial statements and notes of the Regisfwed Scheme set out on pages § to 45 are in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporation Regulations 2001 ; and

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Scheme’s financial position as at 30 June 2009, and of its
performance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows for the financia)

year ended on that date.

b} there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Scheme will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable; and

¢) the financial statements are in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s Constitution.

On behaif of the Board

LM Investment Management Limited.

Lisa Darcy / .
Director

Gold Coast

30 September 2009
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independent auditor's report to the unitholders of LM First Mortgage
income Fund

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of LM First Mortgage tncome Fund (‘the Scheme”,
which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2009, and the income statement, statement of changes
in equity and cash fiow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting
policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the responsibte entity of the Scheme are respansible for the preparation and fair
presenfation of the financial report in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards (including the
Austraiian Accounting Inferpretations) and the Corporafions Act 2001. This responsibility inchudes
establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances. In Note 2, the directors aiso state that the financiat report, comprising the financial
statements and notes, complies with Internationai Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and pian and perform the audit to ohiain
reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence aboul the amounts and disclosureas in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we conslder infernai controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in order o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinfon on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting poiicies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit gpinion,

Independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, We
have given to the directors of the company a written Auditer's Independence Declaration, a copy of which
is included in the directors’ report.

Liabitity imited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standasrds Legislation
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Auditor's Opinion

In our opinlon:

1. the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:
(i} giving a true and fair view of the financial position of LM First Mortgage Income Fund at 30

June 2009 and of its performance for the year ended on that date: and

ai compiying with Austrafian Accounting Standards (ncluding the Australian Accounting
interpretations) and the Corporations Regufations 2001.

2. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
: international Accounting Standards Board, as disclosed in Note 2.

Eeova o My,

A

Ernst & Young

—p H %‘E\QL &

Pauta Mcl.uskie
Pariner

Brisbane

30 Septermnber 2009
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